Microsoft Office Excel

Torben Lage Frandsen



Download free books at

bookboon.com

Torben Lage Frandsen

Excel 2007

Excel 2007 © 2010 Torben Lage Frandsen & Ventus Publishing ApS ISBN 978-87-7681-675-9

Contents

	Introduction	9
	A Small Reader's Guide	9
1.	What is New in Excel 2007	11
1.1	Ribbons and Tabs	11
1.2	Larger Workspace	11
1.3	More Colours	11
1.4	Colour Themes and Styles	11
1.5	Improved Pivot Tables	11
1.6	Improved Conditional Formatting	12
1.7	More and Better-Looking Charts	12
1.8	New File Format	12
1.9	Where can I find the Old Buttons?	12
2.	First Look at Excel	13
2.1	The Screen and its Elements	13
2.1.1	Workbooks and Spreadsheets	14
2.1.2	The Ribbon	14
2.1.3	The Office Button	15
2.1.4	Quick Access	16

Turning a challenge into a learning curve. Just another day at the office for a high performer.

Accenture Boot Camp – your toughest test yet

Choose Accenture for a career where the variety of opportunities and challenges allows you to make a difference every day. A place where you can develop your potential and grow professionally, working alongside talented colleagues. The only place where you can learn from our unrivalled experience, while helping our global clients achieve high performance. If this is your idea of a typical working day, then Accenture is the place to be.

It all starts at Boot Camp. It's 48 hours that will stimulate your mind and enhance your career prospects. You'll spend time with other students, top Accenture Consultants and special guests. An inspirational two days

Please click the advert

packed with intellectual challenges and activities designed to let you discover what it really means to be a high performer in business. We can't tell you everything about Boot Camp, but expect a fast-paced, exhilarating and intense learning experience. It could be your toughest test yet, which is exactly what will make it your biggest opportunity.

Find out more and apply online.

Visit accenture.com/bootcamp

• Consulting • Technology • Outsourcing



2.1.5	The Workspace	16
2.1.6	Sheet Tabs	16
2.1.7	Display Buttons	17
2.1.8	Start a New Spreadsheet	18
2.2	Navigating the spreadsheet	19
2.2.1	Navigating Large Spreadsheets	19
2.2.2	Cell Pointer and Auto Fill	19
2.3	Writing in the Cells	20
2.4	Adaptation of Cell Size	21
2.5	Selecting Cells	21
2.5.1	Compound Selection	22
2.5.2	Navigating Inside a Selection	22
3.	Calculations	23
3.1	Formulas	23
3.1.1	Operators	24
3.2	Formulas with references	25
3.2.1	References to Other Spreadsheets	26
3.3	Functions	27
3.3.1	The SUM Function	27
3.3.2	The AVERAGE Function	29



I can shape the future. Every day.

The E.ON graduate program requires my energy and creative input. In exchange I get to work with up-to-date technologies in a team that supports my professional development. What about you?

Your energy shapes the future.

www.eon-career.com



4.	Copying cells	30
4.1	Simple Copying	30
4.2	Series	31
4.2.1	Series with Numbers	33
4.2.2	Series that you define	33
4.3	Copying Formulas	36
4.3.1	Relative and Absolute References	38
5.	Formatting	42
5.1	Text and colours	42
5.1.1	Formatting using the Ribbon	42
5.1.2	Formatting using the shortcut menu	43
5.1.3	Borders and Frames	46
5.2	Number Formats	49
5.3	Date and Time	50
5.4	Formatting Tables	52
5.5	Conditional Formatting	54
5.6	Themes and Styles	57
6.	Working with Tables	62
6.1	Create a Table	62
6.2	Filtering	63



AutoFilter	64
Advanced Filter	67
Advanced Filter with Formulas	72
Sorting	73
Pivot Tables	76
Preserving Results	82
A Couple of Tips on Pivot Tables	82
Charts	83
Bar Charts	83
Charting Tools and Language Confusion	85
Terminology – What does it mean?	86
Change of Scale	87
Line Charts	91
Charts with both Columns and Lines	93
Circle Charts	94
Scatter Charts	97
Results of Measurements	98
Graphic Representation of Mathematical Expressions	100
Chart Sheet	102
Viewing and Printing	102
Printing	102
Print Preview	103
Page Setup	105
Viewing	109
Adjust Print Range	111
Managing Page Breaks	113
Working with Multiple Spreadsheets	115
Working with Sheet Tabs	116
Retrieve Data from Other Workbooks	117
Macros – Automation	119
Recording a Macro	119
Play a Macro	121
A Button for Your Macro	122
Advanced Excel	124
Nested Functions	124
Look-up	125
VLOOKUP (Vertical Lookup)	125
HLOOKUP (Horizontal Lookup)	126
Mathematical and Statistical Functions	126
	AutoFilterAdvanced FilterAdvanced Filter with FormulasSortingPivot TablesPreserving ResultsA Couple of Tips on Pivot TablesChartsBar ChartsCharting Tools and Language ConfusionTerminology – What does it mean?Change of ScaleLine ChartsCharts with both Columns and LinesCircle ChartsScatter ChartsGraphic Representation of Mathematical ExpressionsChart SheetViewing and PrintingPrintingPrintingPrintingPrintingPrintingAdjust Print RangeManaging Page BreaksWorking with Sheet TabsRetrieve Data from Other WorkbooksMacros – AutomationRecording a MacroPlay a MacroA Button for Your MacroHLOOKUP (Vertical Lookup)HLOOKUP (Horizontal Lookup)Hatematical and Statistical Functions

10.3.1	SUM	126
10.3.2	AVERAGE	126
10.3.3	SQROOT (Square Root)	126
10.3.4	Trigonometric Functions	127
10.3.5	PI	127
10.3.6	ABS (Absolute Value)	127
10.3.7	SHORTEN	128
10.3.8	ROUND OFF	128
10.3.9	MIN (Minimum Value)	128
10.3.10	MAX (Maximum Value)	128
10.3.11	SUMIF (Conditional Sum)	128
10.3.12	RAND (Random Numbers)	128
10.3.13	COUNT (Number of Cells with Numbers)	128
10.4	Logical functions	129
10.4.1	AND Function	129
10.4.2	OR Function	129
10.4.3	NOT Function	129
10.4.4	IF Function	129
10.4.5	IF.ERROR Function	129
10.5	Analyse Data with Analysis Toolpak	130
10.5.1	Installation of Analysis Toolpak	130
10.5.2	A Quick Analysis with Analysis Toolpak	131
10.6	Goal Seek	132

11.	Concluding	Remarks
-----	------------	---------

135

Introduction

Nothing is difficult once you have learned it. That applies to Excel as well, and once you have learned it, you will be able to do things you never dreamed of! You will be able, to make calculations more complex than NASA did when they sent the first man to the moon!

It may sound like big words, but in the case of Excel - or spreadsheet programs in general - it is quite true. Spreadsheets can process large amounts of data and give you the calculation results in no time. And when the calculations are made, you can have them presented as beautiful tables and graphs.

I know of many who are reluctant to engage with Excel because they find it difficult. Granted, Excel is a program that requires some basic skills before embarking on it, and if you have no feeling for or interest in numbers it can appear meaningless. With word-processing programs like Word, you can basically just start typing right away, but with spreadsheets it is a different story.

In return, you can achieve some pretty amazing results when you master Excel at a reasonable level. I have made such diverse things as budgets, accounting, production planning, production simulation, energy accounting and quality statistics in Excel, and as long as it involves numbers, the only limit is your imagination.

Excel is a program that you never quite finish learning about. I have used Excel for many years and have tried most things, and I still find it challenging.

Even if you are familiar with all the basic functions, you will find occasion to continue challenging yourself and find new things you can squeeze out of the program. And when the program cannot perform the tasks you require, it also has an entire programming language, enabling you to make your own small programs inside Excel!

I would think Excel is the program in the Office package which over time has had the greatest impact on the business sector. Word may be far more sophisticated than even the most advanced typewriter, but Excel enables you to make calculations in a few hours that previously would have taken several days, weeks or even years to perform.

Being a "numbers nerd" I find it hard to hide my enthusiasm for Excel. I hope that, after you have finished reading this book, you will also have discovered how powerful a tool you now have at your disposal.

A Small Reader's Guide

If you have not worked with Excel before, I would recommend that you read the entire book from one end to another. You can subsequently use it as a reference. I have tried to arrange the book in a logical manner so you can quickly find a chapter that deals with a problem similar to the one you are trying to solve.

If you have already worked a lot with Excel, you can probably skip some of the first sections if you want to get to the really "cool" stuff as quickly as possible.

The book has a number of progressive exercises that illustrate what Excel can do. Of course you can just read through them, but I would advise you to sit down by a computer and perform them as described. It is simply a much better way to learn, and it allows you to experiment beyond the requirements of the exercises.

I have chosen to keep the exercises very simple, using very little data. These exercises can in some cases appear absurd, but the purpose is for you to understand the various points, so that you can exploit the functionality for more complex tasks. I have therefore taken great pains to avoid involving you in something too difficult. There is nothing worse than having to give up on an exercise because you are stuck. If you get stuck anyway, I recommend that you call a good friend or your clever nephew. There is always someone nearby who has worked with Excel and can help you out.

Many exercises require that you type a few things into the spreadsheet first. It is important that you type in these things exactly as described. If I ask you to write something in cell B2, and you type it in cell C2, you will probably have problems with the exercise later. The same goes for spelling. Always spell words in exactly the same way I did when you type them into the sheet.

When I ask you to "click" on something, it is a click with the left mouse button. A double click is two fast clicks with the left mouse button. If I want you to click the right mouse button, I call it a "right-click".

Buttons and menus that you can / must click are always written in underlined font. This means that when you see underlined text you should be able to find something similar on the screen that you can click on.

If I want you to type something in your spreadsheet, it will appear like this:

Type=sum(a1:b3)

Now we are ready to start up the program and look at all its wonderful features!

1. What is New in Excel 2007

In the last several versions the new features in Excel have mostly been cosmetic in nature, but in version 2007 there are many new things. There have been many improvements in appearance, but Microsoft has in this version also introduced many functional improvements.

1.1 Ribbons and Tabs

Like the other applications in the Office package, Excel has also gotten a new and smarter look. The first thing that catches the eye is that the traditional menu bars and toolbars have been replaced by the new "Ribbon". The Ribbon contains Tabs, and each Tab contains buttons for various functions that were previously located in the menus and toolbars. The Ribbon is far more visual and task-oriented and adapts constantly to the activity you are engaged in.

If you have been accustomed to working with menus and toolbars for many years, it takes a while to get used to the Ribbon, but I must admit that after some time I have been really pleased with the new system. It appears more coherent, and it is not as messy as the toolbars sometimes tend to be.

1.2 Larger Workspace

It has always been possible to make large spreadsheets in Excel. In previous versions you could have 65,536 rows and 256 columns. This made for pretty large spreadsheets, but you had better sit down for this: In Excel 2007, you have up to 1,048,576 rows and 16,384 columns!

1.3 More Colours

In previous versions you had only a few colours to choose from when you had to put background colour in the cells. Now you can choose between 16 million different colours. You can also create colour transitions inside the cells. It gives you unprecedented opportunities to create worksheets that look nice and inviting.

1.4 Colour Themes and Styles

Now you can use predefined colour themes in Excel. This feature is known from Word and Power Point, where the programs help you format your entire document, so everything appears smooth and harmonious. This is also possible in Excel now.

If you make charts, they will automatically be consistent with the colour theme that is selected

1.5 Improved Pivot Tables

The "Pivot Table" function has been one of the features that have been least accessible. Microsoft has radically changed the way to set up a pivot table so it is easier and more intuitive to use.

1.6 Improved Conditional Formatting

The "Conditional Formatting" function has been significantly improved. There are more opportunities for highlighting of, for example, "Top 10", and it is possible to colour the cells according to cell value

1.7 More and Better-Looking Charts

Excel 2007 has no new basic chart types, but there are now more variations of existing ones. Formatting has been improved, and you can, for example, add soft shadows behind your columns, which gives a nice effect. If you do not choose the colours in a chart yourself, the colours in the spreadsheet colour theme will be automatically applied, so everything appears harmoniously.

1.8 New File Format

Excel uses a new file format which is not compatible with earlier versions. If you have worked with the program before, you will know that the file name ends in ". Xls". In Excel 2007 the file name ends with ".Xlsx".

For the technically minded, I can reveal that it is an XML-based format, which gives smaller file sizes and better opportunities for integration with other programs.

You can still save your spreadsheets in the old format, but be aware that some functionality may be lost.

1.9 Where can I find the Old Buttons?

If you are familiar with older versions of Excel, you will probably have trouble finding some of the old features. This is obviously because the menu bar and toolbars have been replaced with the "Ribbon". It might be a little confusing, but I'll try to list the main functions, so you can find them quickly.

<u>New</u>, <u>Open</u>, <u>Save</u>, <u>Save As</u> and <u>Close</u> are located in the <u>Office Button</u> at the top left. The Save feature is also available as standard in the Quick Access Toolbar, located just to the right of the Office Button.

Preview is also available in the Office Button under menu item Print.

The <u>Drawing</u> toolbar no longer exists. It has been replaced by the Shapes and SmartArt buttons under the <u>Insert</u> tab in the Ribbon.

The Insert symbol is also located in the Ribbon under the Insert tab. This button is simply called Symbol.

Normal view and Page Break preview are there as small buttons at the bottom right corner of the screen.

The <u>Insert</u> function has been replaced by the <u>Formulas</u> Tab in the Ribbon. This is a clear improvement, but if you prefer the old dialog box, you can get it by clicking on <u>FX</u> on the formula bar.

2. First Look at Excel

In this section we will review the basic structure of Excel 2007. You start the program by clicking the Windows Start button at the bottom left, then click Programs.

In the programs menu you will find a folder called Microsoft Office, which is where Excel is located.



Figure 1: Excel's structure. Currently, cell A1 has been selected. I have highlighted column H and row 13. The cell where column H and row 13 meet is called H13.

2.1 The Screen and its Elements

When you start Excel, you will automatically start in a new, blank workbook.

Excel basically looks and works the same way it has in the last 4-5 versions. If you already know Excel, you can use it exactly as you have always done. Nevertheless, there have been some changes and improvements different places, and they are not just cosmetic.

2.1.1 Workbooks and Spreadsheets

An ordinary Excel file is called a "Workbook" and can contain different things. The most important thing is that it can contain worksheets, but it may also contain chart sheets and small programs that you can do yourself. The most important thing is to be aware that an Excel file is not necessarily just a spreadsheet but a workbook that can contain many spreadsheets and charts.

2.1.2 The Ribbon

The Ribbon with its Tabs and buttons is located at the top. The Ribbon is the most obvious change in Excel compared to previous versions, and it replaces the old menus and toolbars. But the Ribbon does not replace only the menus and toolbars. Many functions which previously required that you filled out various dialog boxes have become more directly accessible in the Ribbon

In my case it took some time to get used to the Ribbon because I have been accustomed to the menu bar and toolbars for many years. The Ribbon is far more visual and task-oriented, and it looks very nice. Whether it is an improvement is perhaps a matter of taste. It was difficult for me to get used to it after so many years with the menu bar and toolbars.



Engineer your Future at DTU

MSc in Engineering programs

All of DTU 26 English-taught MSc programs consist of research-based courses taught by faculty members performing research at the highest international levels.

In 2008, the Leiden Ranking rated DTU number 5 among Europe's 100 technical universities, and THES ranked DTU number 20 globally and number 3 in Europe measured by scientific impact in engineering.

A study by iGraduate shows that more than 90 pct. International Students will recommend DTU.

Click here vww.dtu.dl But somehow, I have become quite fond of it. The old toolbar had a tendency to "mess around" at the top of the screen, whereas the Ribbon stays in place, so when you need a button, it will be in the same place as last time you used it.

There are also many exciting new features for formatting and graphics, and the old shortcut keys also still work.

	1	- (24 -) =				Booki	Book1 [Compatibility Mode] - Microsoft Excel				
	Hom	e Insert F	Page Layout	Formulas	Data R	eview View	Acr	obat			
	×	Calibri 👻	11 • A A	·) (= = =	■ ≫-	📑 Wrap Text		General	-	g 📝	
Paste	-	B <i>I</i> <u>U</u> →	• • <u>A</u>	• = = =		🛃 Merge & Cente	er *	₩ ,	Condit Format	tional Format cting ≠ as Table	t Cell • * Styles *
Clipbo	ard 🕼	Font		Ga 🗌	Alignm	ient	Gi.	Number	rs	Styles	

Figure 2: A section of the Ribbon.

It is also a great improvement that small "tool tips" pop up when you point to a button that has been upgraded. They have nice graphics and more detailed explanations of what the button does. It is a great help when you want to know the program.

2.1.3 The Office Button

In the top left corner of the screen you will find the round <u>Office Button</u>. It corresponds by and large to the old "File" menu.



Figure 3: The Office Button

If you click on the Office button a menu pops up. This is the menu you must enter when you want to create a new blank spreadsheet, and when you need to save it.

New Recent Documents 1 august 2010 1 2 ISBN-liste 7681 1 3 Chart in Microsoft Office Word 1 4 juni 2010 1 5 Conyert 5 Chart in Microsoft Office Word 5 Save 6 Grafiker arbejdsliste 7 April 2010 1 8 Maj 2010 1 9 Init 2 Landefakta_samlet 1 andefakta_samlet 1	-		Recent Demonstra	
1 august 2010	New		Recent Documents	
Open 2 ISBN-liste 7681 -1 3 Chart in Microsoft Office Word -1 4 juni 2010 -1 5 Chart in Microsoft Office Word -1 5 Chart in Microsoft Office Word -1 6 Grafiker arbejdsliste -1 7 April 2010 -1 8 Maj 2010 -1 2 Landefakta_samlet -1 1 Print -1 1 Landefakta_samlet -1 1 Landefakta -1 1 Landefakta -1 1 Landefakta -1 1 Landefakta_samlet -1 1 Landefakta_samlet -1 1			1 august 2010	-[=]
3 Chart in Microsoft Office Word	Den <u>O</u> pen		2 ISBN-liste 7681	-[=]
Convert 4 juni 2010 4 5 Chart in Microsoft Office Word 5 6 Grafiker arbejdsliste 6 7 April 2010 6 8 Maj 2010 6 9 Landefakta_samlet 6 1 Landefakta 6 1 Landefakta_samlet 6 1 Landefakta 6 1 Landefakta_samlet 6 1 Landefakta_			3 Chart in Microsoft Office Word	-14
Save 5 Chart in Microsoft Office Word 1 Save 6 Grafiker arbejdsliste 1 2 April 2010 1 Save As 2 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Print 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Prepare 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Prepare 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 1 Landefakta 1 1 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Landefakta_samlet 1			<u>4</u> juni 2010	-(=
Save 6 Grafiker arbejdsliste 1 2 April 2010 1 8 Maj 2010 1 2 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Drint 1 1 Drint 1 1 Iandefakta_samlet 1 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Landefakta 1 1 Landefakta 1 1 Landefakta 1 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 1 Landefakta_samlet 1			5 Chart in Microsoft Office Word	-(=
Image: Save As in a same of the same	Save		6 Grafiker arbejdsliste	-(=
8 Maj 2010 1 2 Landefakta_samlet 1 2 Landefakta_samlet 1 isbn_forlag_7061 1 Landefakta_samlet 1 ibn_forlag_7061 1 Landefakta_samlet 1	<u></u>		7 April 2010	-(=
Save 25 2 Landefakta_samlet			<u>8</u> Maj 2010	-(=
isbn_forlag_7061 isbn_forlag_7061 isbn_forlag_7061	Save As		<u>9</u> Landefakta_samlet	-[=
Print Landefakta_Estland_Letland_Litauen 12-04-2010 Landefakta_samlet Image: Prepare Landefakta_samlet Landefakta_samlet Image: Landefakta_samlet Landefakta_samlet Landefakta_samlet			isbn_forlag_7061	-[=
Landefakta_samlet Landefakta_samlet Prepare Landefakta_samlet Landefakta_samlet Landefakta_Estland_Letland_Litauen 12-04-2010 Landefakta Send Landefakta Landefakta Landefakta Landefakta Landefakta Publish Landefakta_samlet Landefakta_samlet	Print	•	Landefakta_Estland_Letland_Litauen 12-04-2010	-[=
Yrgpare > Landefakta_samlet -Landefakta_samlet -La			Landefakta_samlet	-[=
Landefakta_Estiand_Letland_litauen 12-04-2010 □ Send Landefakta □ Landefakta_samlet □ Publish Landefakta_samlet □	Pr <u>e</u> pare	•	Landefakta_samlet	-[=
Sen <u>d</u> → Landefakta -Landefakta -Landefakta_samlet			Landefakta_Estland_Letland_Litauen 12-04-2010	-[=
Landefakta_samlet → Publish → Landefakta_samlet →	Sen <u>d</u>	•	Landefakta	-[=
Publish → Landefakta_samlet -	-		Landefakta_samlet	-(=
	Publish	•	Landefakta_samlet	-6=
	Close			

Figure 4: Clicking on the Office Button opens this menu.

It is also via the <u>Office Button</u> that you can find <u>Excel Options</u>, where you can change the settings for how Excel should work.

2.1.4 Quick Access

The small discrete toolbar "Quick Access", where with a single click you can save, undo, etc., is located just to the right of the <u>Office Button</u>. "Quick Access" can be customised so that you can choose the features that suit you best. You do this by right-clicking on a button and choosing <u>Customize Quick Access</u> <u>Toolbar</u>. Alternatively you can click the small arrow to the right of the toolbar, which enables you to quickly select and deselect various features.

2.1.5 The Workspace

The workspace is located underneath the Ribbon, and this is where you have your spreadsheet. The spreadsheet is a huge table with "columns" and "rows". The columns are named with letters in the "column headings", and the rows are labelled with row numbers in the "row headings." By clicking on a column heading, you can select the cells in the whole column, and the same is true if you click on a row heading.

The "Corner" is located in the top left corner of the worksheet. By clicking on the corner you can select all the cells in the entire worksheet.

The cells are the basic elements of the worksheet; this is where we type in our data and formulas. Wherever a row and a column meet, we have a "cell". Each cell in the worksheet has a unique name. For example, the cell located where column C and row 4 meet is called "C4". A cell can contain numbers, words and formulas.

Formulas are a kind of commands that you type into a cell, which make the cell display the result of a calculation. You do not have to worry about that yet, I promise we will return to it in more detail.

2.1.6 Sheet Tabs

The "Sheet Tabs" are located just below the worksheet, on the left side. This is because you can work with multiple worksheets at once. An Excel file is therefore also called a "Workbook", because it is similar to a folder containing a number of spreadsheets.

¢	\leftrightarrow	H	Sheet1 Sheet2 Sheet3	
_				
			Figure 5: The Sheet Tabs	



The Sheet Tabs are by default named "Sheet1", "Sheet2" etc., but you can give them more meaningful names yourself. You can also delete and add Sheet Tabs, and thus spreadsheets.

If you right-click on one of the Sheet Tabs, a menu pops up giving you the opportunity to do various different things. You can add, delete and copy Sheet Tabs, and thus the spreadsheets they represent. You can also change the order of the Tabs and give each Tab its own colour, which can facilitate the overview.

2.1.7 Display Buttons

You can use the display buttons to adjust the way you view the spreadsheet. When you start a new spreadsheet, it is displayed in "Normal View", but you can also view it as a "Page Impression", which is somewhat similar to the way it would look if you were to print the sheet.

"Show page breaks" is another option, where you can view and adjust the page breaks in the print-out.

		3
	_	*1
100%	0	 - + .
 а т .		

Figure 6: The display buttons.

Finally, there is the zoom function, which allows you to enlarge or reduce the view of the sheet. The zoom function does not affect how the spreadsheet appears on a print-out.

The zoom function is easy to use, but a better way in my opinion is to hold down the CTRL key on your keyboard while scrolling up and down with the scroll wheel on your mouse. Of course this requires that you have a mouse with a scroll wheel.



Please click the advert

2.1.8 Start a New Spreadsheet

When Excel starts up, the program will display a new, blank workbook. This is fine, but you do not always have to build everything up from scratch. Alternatively, you can start a new spreadsheet manually, using various templates.

- 1. Click on the Office Button in the top left corner of the screen.
- 2. Click on <u>New</u>.

You will now have the opportunity to choose which template you want to use. The templates are organised in categories on the left side, which you can click on. When later in the book you have to perform an exercise, and I ask that you start with a blank worksheet, select the <u>Empty and Latest</u> category, and then the template <u>Blank Spreadsheet</u>. Later, when you get more familiar with it, you can try different templates.



Figure 7: There are many possibilities when you want to start a new spreadsheet.

Templates for invoicing budgeting and even monitoring of blood pressure have already been installed.

If you do not think the preinstalled templates are enough, it is possible to download many more via the categories under "Microsoft Office Online".

2.2 Navigating the spreadsheet

You can use both mouse and keyboard to navigate the worksheet, but I recommend that you practice using the keyboard. It is a faster and ergonomically better solution. You'll need to move things around a lot in the spreadsheet, and if you always use the mouse you could easily develop a "mouse-arm"

Past	e 🦪	BIU	•	🇞 - <u>A</u> -
Clipbe	oard 🖼		Font	rş.
	B2	+	(f_{x}
A	А	В	С	D
1				
2				
3				
4				

Figure 8: Here B2 is the active cell.

Using the keyboard to move around has other advantages which I shall return to later.

There is always one, and only one, active cell in the spreadsheet. It is identified by a thick black border all around it called the "cell pointer". You can choose a second active cell using the arrow keys or the mouse.

Try pressing lightly on the arrow keys on the keyboard to move the cursor.

2.2.1 Navigating Large Spreadsheets

When you navigate large spreadsheets, it becomes really difficult to use the mouse. You can move quickly to specific locations in a spreadsheet using the keyboard.

If you press down the CTRL key and press the HOME key on the keyboard, the cursor moves to cell A1.

If you hold down the CTRL key and use the arrow keys, you can skip to "where something is happening." It could, for example, be the outer edge of a table. If you have a table with 1000 rows and 50 columns in your spreadsheet, pressing the down arrow while you press down the CTRL key will take you to the last row of the table. Similarly, the up arrow will take you to the top. The principle is the same for moving right and left.

This can also be used for selection of cells. If, in addition to pressing down the CTRL key, press down the Shift key as well, the cells will be selected.

2.2.2 Cell Pointer and Auto Fill

If you take a close look at the cell pointer, you'll notice a small black square in the lower right corner of the cursor. This is the location of a feature with the awkward name "Auto Fill". Auto Fill can be used via the mouse if you need to quickly copy some cells. When you point to the little black square with the mouse the mouse cursor changes to a small black cross. Keep the left mouse



Figur 9: The cell pointer. Note the littel black box in the bottom right corner.

button down and move the mouse until you have marked some cells, then release the mouse button again.

Several things can happen when you do this. Either a simple copying of content from the active cell will take place or a "series" will be introduced. If, for example, you typed "Monday" in the active cell and used Auto Fill to copy it, the subsequent cells will read "Tuesday", "Wednesday", etc. This is one kind of series. Excel has a number of predefined ranges for particular weekdays and months. You can also create your own series, and we will come back to that later in the book.

2.3 Writing in the Cells

Try typing some numbers and text in different cells. When you finish typing something into a cell, press the ENTER key on the keyboard. The cell below the cell you just typed in will become the active cell. Note also that if you write text in a cell, the text will be aligned to the left. If you type in numbers, the figure will be adjusted to the right.

If you want to change something in a cell, you can double-click on it, which enables you to change the content. If it is the active cell you want to change, you can also press F2 on your keyboard.

Careers for heavyweights

You've got a good brain. milkround.com will make the most of it.

milkround.com is dedicated to finding graduates careers in the industries they want to work in.

Register now and weigh up the best possible start to your career.

Please click the advert

Recruitment of the highest degree

Cn) • (* •) •					Boo	k1 [Com	patibility I	Mode]	- Micros	oft
	Get	Genuine Office	Home	Insert	Page Layout	Formulas	Data	Rev	iew 1	View	Acrol	oat
P	X	Calibri	- 11 - A	× × =	= = >	- 📑 w	rap Text		General		*	
Past	te 🦪	B I <u>U</u> -	-	<u>A</u> - =	* * *	律 图 M	erge & Cer	nter +	- %	,		e F
Clipb	oard G	For	nt	R.	A	lignment		6	Nur	nber	G.	
	B3	+ (9	f _x	Revenue								
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н		I	J	
1												
2			January	February	March	-						
3		Revenue	1	155	210		-					
4		Expenditure	150	180	190		Form	ula	line			
5							10111	uiu	mic			
6												
7												

If you merely wish to add something new you just double-click on the active cell.

Figure 10: The Formula Bar displays the content of the cell.

Also note the "Formula Bar", as shown in Figure 11. It is currently showing what you type into the cells, and may not seem especially important right now. But later, when you use formulas in some of the cells, the Formula Bar will show what kind of formula that is used in the active cell, while the active cell displays the result.

2.4 Adaptation of Cell Size

The cells are exactly the same from the start, but this can be changed. You can change the cell size by changing the row height and column width. Try moving your mouse over the column headers (A, B, C, etc.). You will notice that the mouse cursor changes when it approaches a new column. When it does, you can press the left mouse button down while moving the mouse to adjust column width. The same method can be used to change the row height.

Instead of clicking and dragging with your mouse, you can double-click it. This will adjust the column width so that it is just wide enough to show the largest cell in the column. You can experiment with this yourself. This method can also be used to adjust the row height.

2.5 Selecting Cells

To select a single cell, just move the cell pointer to it so that it becomes the active cell. If you want to select multiple cells, there are two ways to do it.

- 1. Point to a cell with the mouse, press the left mouse button down and drag the mouse, by which an area will be selected. Release the left mouse button when you have selected the area you wanted. The cell you clicked on first will be the active cell.
- 2. Move the cursor to the corner of the area you want to select. Hold down the Shift key on your keyboard and press the arrow keys. As long as you hold down the Shift the selection will be adjusted. Release the Shift key when you are done selecting.

2.5.1 Compound Selection

You can also select multiple independent fields at once. Here you will have to use both mouse and keyboard simultaneously.

You must hold down the CTRL key on your keyboard, then select the desired fields with the mouse. Experiment a little with it yourself.

2.5.2 Navigating Inside a Selection

If you have selected an area and then press one of the arrow keys on the keyboard, the selection will disappear. That is not always what we want, so instead, use the TAB key and ENTER key on your keyboard to move to the right and downward respectively. You can use the same keys to move left and upwards by pressing down the SHIFT key simultaneously.

3. Calculations

The primary objective of Excel is to count, and the program is actually quite good at it!

To make a calculation you must write a "formula". The formula should be written into the cell showing the result. A formula is a structured piece of text that tells Excel what it has to calculate. It is not that hard to learn in small steps, so let us write a simple little formula to calculate the result of 2+3.

3.1 Formulas

In Excel one always starts a formula by typing an equal sign =. It is a sign that tells Excel that what is in the cell is a formula and not a text or a number. When you are finished typing the formula, Excel will display the result in the cell instead of the formula you have written.



23

1. Place the cursor in a random cell and type = 2+3 (See Figure 12).

Clip	board 🔤		Font	<u>م</u>	
	SUM	-	(• × 🗸	<i>f_{sc}</i> =2+3	
	A	В	С	D	E
1					
2					
3		=2+3			
4					
5					
4 5				•	

Figure 11: Your first formula.

2. Press the ENTER key on the keyboard.

It should now read "5" in the cell in which you wrote the formula. Move the cursor to the cell, and note that the Formula Bar still reads "=2+3", like shown in Figure 12.

Clip	board 🖳		Font		G	
_	B3	-	(•	f_{x}	=2+3	
	А	В	С		D	
1						
2						
3		5				
4						
_						

Figure 12: The result of your formula is displayed in the cell, and the formula is displayed in the Formula Bar.

If you want to change the formula, you can click on the Formula Bar to edit it. Alternatively, you can doubleclick the cell or press the F2 key on your keyboard.

3.1.1 Operators

You can use the four methods of calculation (plus +, minus -, multiply * and divide /) in this way. You can also use parentheses if necessary. For example, 2+3 * 4 is not the same as (2+3) * 4. In this respect Excel follows the general calculation rules.

Potency is calculated by using the sign " $^{"}$, written by holding down SHIFT on your keyboard and pressing the key between Z and ENTER. For example, 2^3 is written 2^3 .

So far, you are probably not all that impressed with Excel's calculation capacity. Actually, we could make the above calculation much easier by using a simple pocket calculator, and it is only to show what a basic formula is.

3.2 Formulas with references

To make everything right, we must take advantage of "references" in our formulas. References are made to values in other cells. Delete everything you have written in your spreadsheet so far, and do the following:

- 1. In cell B2, type the number 2.
- 2. In cell B3, type the number 3.

Now it should look like Figure 13.



Figure 13: Type the number 2 in cell B2 and the number 3 in cell B3.

Then do the following:

- 3. Start by typing an = sign into cell B4 to show that you are about to write a formula. Do NOT type anything else, and do NOT press the ENTER key.
- 4. Take your mouse, point to cell B2 and click once with the left mouse button. Now the Formula Bar should show "= B2".
- 5. Press the + key on the keyboard. You are hopefully not surprised that it says "= B2 +"
- 6. Take your mouse again, point to cell B3, and click once with the left mouse button. Now it says "= B2 + B3" in the Formula Bar.
- 7. Press the ENTER key on the keyboard.

If the computer did not break down it is now possible to create a formula that adds the values in cell B2 and B3 and displays the result 5 in cell B4. You should actually be able to write exactly the same formula in a different cell in the spreadsheet, so let us try it.

- 8. Choose an empty cell and type the following (without using the mouse): =B2+B3
- 9. And press ENTER.

The result is of course the same, but now you have seen that you can freely choose between creating cell references by clicking with the mouse or typing them in directly. Each method has its advantages. When you click the mouse, you do not risk making typos but typing is often faster.

The great thing about the formulas is that they keep working. If you change the numbers in cells B2 and B3 the results in the cells with formulas also change. So go ahead and try writing some other numbers in cell B2 and B3.

I would suggest that you try writing some small formulas with references to get a little practice before we go any further. We have barely scratched the surface regarding formulas.

In the next section, we will try using some of Excel's built-in "functions" in our formulas.

3.2.1 References to Other Spreadsheets

You are not limited to refer to cells in the same spreadsheet. In Excel you can have multiple spreadsheets in the same Excel file, and they are, as mentioned previously, organised in the "Sheet Tabs" at the bottom of the screen.

If you refer to a cell in another worksheet, the reference must contain both a sheet reference and a cell reference.

If you type a formula in Sheet1, that uses the value from cell B2 in Ark2, the reference must be"SHEET2'!B2", not just "B2", which would be a reference to the sheet you are currently working in.

You can also refer to cells in other spreadsheet files; we will return to that eventually.

Welcome to Atotech – Welcome to the World of Electroplating



3.3 Functions

When I talk about "functions", I mean functions in formulas. These are not functions such as "Print" or "Save", but calculation functions. In the previous section you learned how to write simple formulas, where you could calculate with a few numbers. Functions enable you to add thousands of numbers together in an instant, calculate averages, make probability calculations and many other things.

Functions are used in the formulas, and you can use several functions in the same formula. If we want to be really advanced we can even use functions within other functions, but we will not go that far yet.

All functions in Excel are written in a certain way, which can be summed up in this manner

Function name(arguments)

All functions have a "function name". For example, the function that adds together numbers is called "SUM", and the function that calculates averages is called "AVERAGE". The Function Name is followed by one or more "Arguments", which are the numbers or cell references that feature must use in the calculation. If there is more than one argument in a function, they are separated by a semicolon ";". It looks like this:

Function name(argument 1; argument 2; argument 3)

Let us explore the most common functions, SUM and AVERAGE.

3.3.1 The SUM Function

Now you will learn how to add together many numbers in an instant, but let us start with something simple.

- 1. Type the number 2 in cell B2
- 2. Type the number 3 in cell B3
- 3. Type the number 4 in cell B4

Now we will type a formula into cell B5 to add together the numbers in cells B2, B3 and B4.

- 4. In cell B5, write enter = SUM (B2; B3; B4). You will see that Excel colours the cell references and frames the corresponding cells in the same colour. It is helpful later when you work with more complicated formulas.
- 5. Press the ENTER key.

Cell B5 should now show the result "9". If it did not work, check that you remembered to write an equal sign at the beginning of the formula.

Cen	proving [1.0110		U	7.015
	SUM	-	(• × 🗸	<i>f</i> ∗ =SUN	И (В2,В3,В4)	
	А	В	С	D	E	F
1						
2		2				
3		3				
4		4				
5		=SUM (<mark>B2</mark> ,	B3,B4)			
6						
_						

Figure 14: Writing a formula with the SUM function.

You have written a formula with a SUM function with three arguments: the three cell references are separated by semicolons. Suppose you have to add together 1000 figures using cell references, that formula would be very long. It is, therefore, possible to use a "region reference" as an argument.

A region reference consists of two cell references separated by a colon ":". Excel will add together the two cells AND all the cells between them.

- 1. Select cell B5 and press the F2 key on the keyboard.
- 2. Rewrite the formula so it reads =SUM (B2:B4 and press the ENTER key. Remember this time there should be a colon ":" in the function, not a semicolon ";".

Cent	noard		FOR		L	Ang
	SUM	•	(• × 🗸	<i>f</i> ∗ =s∪r	VI(B2;B3;B4)	
	A	В	С	D	E	F
1						
2		2				
3		3				
4		4				
5		=SUM(<mark>B2</mark> ;	B3;B4)			
6						

Figure 15: SUM formula with region reference.

The result is the same as last time, but you have now given one argument instead of three arguments, namely the region reference "B2: B4". Since cell B3 is between B2 and B4, it is part of the region that defines the calculation.

If the list had has 1000 numbers that were to be added together instead of three, the formula would simply be called = SUM (B2: B1001). So now you know how to add together the 1000 numbers in an instant!

By the way, the SUM function does not care if there are empty cells in the region specified.

Now you have probably made an effort to write the formulas, just like I asked you to. I can tell you, that when you write formulas Excel is completely indifferent to whether you use uppercase or lowercase. So now you do not need to think about that anymore.

3.3.2 The AVERAGE Function

The AVERAGE function is used exactly like the SUM function, but it calculates the average of the arguments instead. The nice thing about the AVERAGE function is that if there are empty cells in your arguments the AVERAGE function will ignore them. Remember in this context that an empty cell is not the same as a cell where there is a 0 value.

Now we will write a formula with an AVERAGE function, similar to the SUM function we just had. But this time we will provide the region reference using the mouse in order to get a little practice.

- 1. Activate cell B6 and type =AVERAGE(
- 2. Using the mouse, point to cell B2, press the left mouse button and hold it down.
- 3. Move the mouse down in order to select cell B2, B3 and B4, then release the left mouse button. Now it should say =AVERAGE(B2:B4
- 4. Close the brackets ")" and press ENTER.

Cell B6 should now show the result 3.

Later in the book we will review the more advanced features, but if you want a complete overview of all Excel's features, select the <u>Formulas</u> Tab in the Ribbon. Here you can click on the various buttons. They provide access to a wealth of different functions within arithmetic, mathematics, finance and statistics. There are also other types of functions such as logical functions and text functions, which will also be addressed later in the book.



29

4. Copying cells

As in other Windows programs, you can also use "cut", "copy" and "paste" in Excel. You can copy a cell and paste the contents into another cell. This includes formulas. But copying and pasting is an art in itself in Excel, which is why this issue has its very own section in the book. It might be a little confusing at first, but once you have learned it, it is a great help that Excel can "think" by itself when you copy, for example, a formula.

4.1 Simple Copying

With "Simple copying" I mean copying the contents from one cell to one or more other cells when the content is a simple number or a text. You can copy cells with formulas in exactly the same way, but in the following chapter you will see that the consequences are a little different.

The first exercise is a simple copying of a cell.

1. Start with a blank worksheet. We need something to work with so type "Something" in cell B2 and press ENTER on the keyboard.

	В4	•	(f_{x}
	А	В	С	
1				
2				
3		Somethin	k	
4				
5				

Figure 16: Type "Something" in cell B2.

- 2. Move the cursor back to cell B2, then copy the cell to the Windows Clipboard by either clicking the <u>Copy</u> button in the Ribbon or by holding down the CTRL key on your keyboard and pressing the C key.
- 3. Move the cursor back to cell B3. Notice that there is now an animated dotted line around cell B2. Excel always marks the cells that are copied to the clipboard in this way. The highlight will disappear as soon as you copy something else, write something in a cell or press the ESC key on your keyboard. Click the <u>Paste</u> button in the Ribbon or hold down the CTRL key on your keyboard and press the V key.
- 4. Now it should say "Something" in both cell B2 and B3.

This is the simplest form of copying. When you have inserted something, a small "copy button" appears next to the cell. Here you can control various settings for the copy function, but we will not review it here. You can try it yourself once you have mastered the basics.

We will try to copy cell B2 once more, but this time it will be copied to a lot of other cells.

- 1. If there is no longer an animated dotted line around cell B2, you must activate the cell and hold down the CTRL key on your keyboard while you press the C key.
- 2. Make cell D2 the active cell. Hold down the Shift key on your keyboard and use the arrow keys to select the region D2: G12. Alternatively you can mark it with the mouse, but I recommend once more that you get used to using the keyboard.

- 3. Hold down the CTRL key on your keyboard and press the V key.
- 4. Now it says "Something" in cell region D2: G12 (Figure 17).

Clip	board 💌		Font		la j	Alignment 👘			
	D1	-		<i>f</i> _≠ Somethink					
	А	В	С		D	E	F	G	Н
1				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
2				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
3		Somethin	k	Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
4		Somethin	k	Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
5				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
6				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
7				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
8				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
9				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
10				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
11				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
12				Som	nethin	Somethin	Somethin	Somethin	c
13									
14									

Figure 17: Now we have made more copies

Do you remember the section on the cell pointer and Auto fill? The Auto fill feature is located in the small black square in the lower right corner of the cell pointer. We will make a simple copy using it.

- 1. Activate cell B3.
- 2. Using your mouse, point of the little black square in the lower right corner of the cell pointer.
- 3. Press the left mouse button and hold it down while moving the mouse down until you have selected 5 cells.
- 4. Release the left mouse button.

Now you know the different ways you can perform a simple copying procedure. These methods are also used when copying cells with formulas.

4.2 Series

A series is a range of values that are linked. One example is the weekdays. After Monday comes Tuesday, and after Tuesday comes Wednesday. In my experience this never fails, and Excel knows this. Excel already knows the series for weekdays and months, but you can also define ranges yourself. Let us take a look at how it works.

- 1. Start with a blank spreadsheet and type "Monday" in cell B2.
- 2. Ensure that cell B2 is the active cell. Using your mouse, point to the Auto Fill square in the lower right corner of the cell pointer.
- 3. Hold the left mouse button down and drag the mouse to cell B12, then release the mouse button.

It should now look as shown in Figure 18.



Figure 18: We have inserted a series consisting of weekdays

When there are no more elements in the series, it simply starts over. You can see that in cell 19, where Excel writes "Monday" anew.



4.2.1 Series with Numbers

If you need to write a long row of numbers, Excel can also help. In this case there is no predefined series, but Excel tries to figure out what should be in subsequent cells from what you have already written. Let us make a five-times table.

- 1. Start with a blank spreadsheet and type "5" in cell B2.
- 2. Type "10" in cell B3.
- 3. Select the cell region B2:B3, using either the keyboard or the mouse.
- 4. Point the mouse to the Auto Fill square. Keep the left mouse button down and drag the selection down to cell B11. Release the mouse button.

You have now made a five-times table in no time!



Figure 19: The five-times table.

Excel does not always understand what you have in mind, so sometimes you may not get the result you want. But if you have a regular series of numbers, you can at least try Auto Fill first before you start typing numbers into cells manually. If it works as intended, it is faster and you do not risk typing errors.

Try experimenting some more. You are not limited to starting with the values of only two cells. You can also try entering some initial values of three or more cells and see what happens.

4.2.2 Series that you define

You can define your own series. It could be the alphabet or the sequence of the Fibonacci numbers.

Let us try something simple. For example, if we write "First course", we would like Excel to continue with "Main Course", "Dessert" and "Coffee and brandy".

To define a series, we go into Excel's Option. You enter Options by clicking on the big round Office Button in the upper left corner. At the bottom of the box that opens there is a button that says <u>Excel Options</u>. Click on that.

In the settings you can change lots of things to make Excel work differently. I would not recommend that you start changing a lot until you are fairly familiar with the program because here it is possible to mess things up pretty badly.

Excel Options		<u>? ×</u>
Popular Formulas	Change the most popular options in Excel.	
Proofing	Top options for working with Excel	
Save Advanced Customize Add-Ins Trust Center Resources	Show Mini Toolbar on selection Fenable Live Preview Show Developer tab in the Ribbon Always use ClearType Color scheme: Blue ScreenTip style: Show feature descriptions in ScreenTips Create lists for use in sorts and fill sequences: Edit Custom Lists When creating new workbooks Use this font: Body Font	
	Font size: 11 Default yiew for new sheets: Normal View Include this many sheets: 3 Personalize your copy of Microsoft Office User name: mb Choose the languages you want to use with Microsoft Office: Language Settings	
		OK Cancel

Figure 20: Inside Excel Options.

However, it is not "dangerous" to define your own series. Click <u>Edit Custom Lists</u> to get into the series. Excel uses the terms "series" and "lists" somewhat interchangeably, so do not let that confuse you.

Now you should be inside the same window as in Figure 21. There are two panes; one is an overview of the various lists you can choose, and the second shows the contents of the list you have selected.

Custom Lists		<u> </u>	? X
Custom Lists			
Custom lists: NEW LIST Ma, Ti, On, To, Fr, Lø, Sø Mandag, Tirsdag, Onsdag, Torsi jan, feb, mar, apr, maj, jun, jul, januar, februar, marts, april, ma	List entries:		<u>A</u> dd Delete
Press Enter to separate list entrie Import list from cells:	es. \$8\$2:\$8\$11	<u> </u>	Import
		ОК	Cancel

Figure 21: The "Lists" box

As mentioned above, Excel already has some pre-defined lists for weekdays and months. These lists cannot be erased or altered, but the lists you create you can do with what you want.



Let us make the list - or series if you prefer.

- 1. In the left pane, click on <u>NEW LIST</u>.
- 2. Click with left mouse button in the right pane.
- 3. Type First Course and press ENTER on the keyboard.
- 4. Type Main Course and press ENTER on the keyboard.
- 5. Type Dessert and press ENTER on the keyboard.
- 6. Type Coffee and Brandy, then press ENTER on the keyboard.
- 7. Click on the Add button, now you can see your list in the left pane.
- 8. Click OK to close the "Lists" window, then OK again to close "Excel Options".

Now your list is hidden discretely in the background until you decide to use it. We want to try it now, so let us start in a blank worksheet and type "First Course" in cell B2.

	B2	•	()	f_{x}
	A	В	С	C
1				
2		First Cour	e	
3		Main Cou	se	
4		Dessert		
5		Coffee an	d Brandy	
6		First Cour	e	
7		Main Cou	se	
8		Dessert		
9		Coffee an	d Brandy	
10		First Cour	e	
11				
12				
13				
14				
15				
16				

Figure 22: Our series put to practical use.

Now grip the mouse tightly, click on the AutoFill square and drag the mouse either down or to the right, then release the mouse button. If you dragged the mouse down, it will look like Figure 22.

4.3 Copying Formulas

You have now learned the basics of how to copy a cell. Copying cells with formulas is done in exactly the same way, but there are some things in the formulas that you must learn to control. Excel will help you when you copy, so you do not need to edit the formulas that follow. Excel also does different things when you copy and when you cut cells with formulas, but we will return to that in due course.

Let us first get some material to work with. Let us imagine that we have a very small company who sell miracle cures against dry skin, and we want to calculate the monthly profits.
1. Make a spreadsheet exactly identical to what you see in Figure 26.

	C5	-	0	f_{x}		
	А	В	С	D	E	
1						
2			January	February	March	
3		Turnover	1000	1200	950	
4		Costs	750	800	780	
5		Surplus				
6						

Figure 23: The starting point of the exercise.

The monthly surplus should appear in cell C5, D5 and E5, so we start by calculating the surplus for the month of January.

2. In cell C5, type "=C3-C4" and press ENTER.

Cell C5 should now show the result 250.

3. Now copy cell C5 to cell D5 and E5 as described in the section Simple Copying. The Result should be identical to the one in Figure 24.

<u> </u>				<u> </u>		
	D5	•		<i>f</i> _≭ =D3-I	54	
	A	В	С	D	E	F
1						
2			January	February	March	
3		Turnover	1000	1200	950	
4		Costs	750	800	780	
5		Surplus	250	400	170	
6						 +
7						

Figure 24: If you have done everything correctly it will look like this.

Note that Excel has calculated the surplus for February and March correctly as well. This is because it has automatically moved the references.

If you select cell D5 and look at the formula bar, you can see that the formula is "= D3-D4" and not "= C3-C4", as you wrote in cell C5.

As a starting point, Excel works with something called "relative references", which means that the cell references are changed accordingly when you copy a cell with a formula to another location.

This applies only when you copy the cell. If you instead cut cells and paste them somewhere else, the original cell references will be retained.

4.3.1 Relative and Absolute References

When you copy formulas, the concepts "relative" and "absolute" references are important to know. Let us continue our little exercise in which we must now calculate with a fixed monthly expense.

- 1. In the spreadsheet, we are already working with, type "rent of storage" in cell G3.
- 2. Type "300" in cell H3.
- 3. Type "rent of storage" in cell B7, and type "Surplus" after " rent of storage in cell B8.
- 4. Change the text in cell B5 to "Surplus" before "rent of storage".

You will probably have to adjust column width in some places to display it all.

You have now prepared a spreadsheet as shown in Figure 28

- 5. In cell C7, type "=H3" and press ENTER. It now says you have \$50 for rent in January.
- 6. Now copy cell C7 to cell D7 and E7, using one of the methods we have been practicing.



No, you are not doing anything wrong – the cells are supposed to display 0! If you click on cell 7, you can see that in the formula bar it says "J3". This is a case where relative references cannot be used. Instead we must use an absolute reference.

- 7. In cell C7, type "=\$H\$3" and press ENTER.
- 8. Copy cell C7 to cell D7 and E7.

Now it says 300 in all three cells. The dollar sign "locks" a row or column, so that the reference will always be for that row or column, no matter where we copy the cell to.

Try clicking on cell C7, then click the formula in the formula bar so you can edit it. Now try pressing F4 a few times. With F4 you can add and remove dollar signs in the cell reference. Of course you can also just type the dollar signs the usual way.

Let us try another exercise, this time with the Multiplication Table.

1. Create a new spreadsheet as shown in Figure 25.

		· (*);	ŧ			Bool	1 [Compatib	oility Mode] -	Microsoft Exc	el					_ = ×
9	Home	Insert	PageLay	rout For	rmulas D	Data Re	view Vi	ew Acro	bat View	Acrob	at			۲	_ = ×
Paste	ard 5	Calibri 18 I U	• 11 •	• A • •	■ = = = ■ ■ ■ ■ 評評課 参 Alignmer		Seneral	Con	ditional Forma nat as Table * Styles * Styles	itting *	G*= Insert + Delete + Format + Cells	Σ * A Z * Z Sort Z* Filter Edit	& Find & Select *		
	C3	Ŧ	(1	fx											*
	А	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	К	L	М	N	0
2			1	2	3	4	5	6	7		8 9	10			
3		1													
5		3													
7		5													
9		7													
10		8													
12		10													
14															
16															
17 18															
19 20															

Figure 25: Making the Multiplication Table.

The idea of the Multiplication Table is that you can see the result if you multiply a number in the top row with a number in the left column. So let us make some formulas to calculate each cell.

2. In cell C3, type "=C2*B3" and press ENTER.

We know from first grade that 1 times 1 equals 1, so everything seems fine so far.

3. Copy cell C3 to the region C3:L12 and let us see what happens. Be prepared for a less than pretty sight!

Once again it is the relative references that are tricking us. Some sums are calculated incorrectly. Some cells even show the value "# NUM!", Which means that the number is too large for Excel to calculate!

Other cells, like cell F6, display cryptic values, such as "1.1E+11". That is because the number in itself is too large to show in the normal way. In the case of "1.1E+11" it means that you must multiply 1.1 with 10^{11} .

Or to put it differently, you must multiply 1.1 with 100.000.000 (11 zeros)

-			1											
	C3		0	fx =C2*1	83									
1	A	В	с	D	E	F	G	н	1	J	K	L	M	N
1														
2			1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10		
3		1	1	2	6	24	120	720	5040	40320	362880	3628800		
4		2	2	4	24	576	69120	49766400	2,51E+11	1,01E+16	3,67E+21	1,33E+28		
5		3	6	24	576	331776	2,29E+10	1,14E+18	2,86E+29	2,89E+45	1,06E+67	1,41E+95	-	
6		4	24	576	331776	1,1E+11	2,52E+21	2,88E+39	8,25E+68	2,4E+114	2,5E+181	3,6E+276		
7		5	120	69120	2,29E+10	2,52E+21	6,37E+42	1,84E+82	1,5E+151	3,6E+265	#NUM!	#NUM!		
8		6	720	49766400	1,14E+18	2,88E+39	1,84E+82	3,4E+164	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!		
9		7	5040	2,51E+11	2,86E+29	8,25E+68	1,5E+151	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!		
10		8	40320	1,01E+16	2,89E+45	2,4E+114	3,6E+265	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!		
11		9	362880	3,67E+21	1,06E+67	2,5E+181	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!		
12		10	3628800	1,33E+28	1,41E+95	3,6E+276	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!	#NUM!		
13													F	
14														
15														
16														
17														
18														
19														
20														
21														
22														
23														

Figure 26: This is what it looks like when you have copied cell C3 to the entire region. There is definitely something wrong!

Take a look at the formulas in the individual cells. Because of the relative references, it is not the numbers in row 2 that are multiplied with the numbers in column B. We need change to change that!

- 4. In cell C3, type "=C\$2*\$B3" and press ENTER.
- 5. Copy cell C3 to the entire region C3:L12 once more.

Now the table should look like Figure 27



This time we have used the dollar signs to lock row 2 and column B respectively, so they now have become absolute references.

If this is clear you are now in a good position to move forward. The concepts of relative and absolute references are ones that many people find difficult, so if you have not understood it yet, I recommend you put the book aside for today and sleep on it. Tomorrow you can calmly read this section once more and do the exercises without haste. Trust me, you will get it eventually

You are now familiar with the basic concepts of Excel, and you can make spreadsheets. Later in the book we will proceed with more advanced functions and formulas, but it is probably time we learned to make it all look a little more inviting.

Brain power

By 2020, wind could provide one-tenth of our planet's electricity needs. Already today, SKF's innovative know-how is crucial to running a large proportion of the world's wind turbines.

Up to 25 % of the generating costs relate to maintenance. These can be reduced dramatically thanks to our systems for on-line condition monitoring and automatic lubrication. We help make it more economical to create cleaner, cheaper energy out of thin air.

By sharing our experience, expertise, and creativity, industries can boost performance beyond expectations. Therefore we need the best employees who can neet this challenge!

The Power of Knowledge Engineering

Plug into The Power of Knowledge Engineering. Visit us at www.skf.com/knowledge

SKF

5. Formatting

So far we have not worried about getting everything to look neat and attractive, so that is what we are going to do now.

Unless you simply want to make a little simple calculation for yourself, you should consider the formatting of the spreadsheet. If you need to make a large, complex spreadsheet that other people are going to use, you should be aware that, while the construction might appear logical to you, it can be difficult for others to understand the logic. Appropriate formatting also indicates quality and credibility.

There are a myriad of options for formatting in Excel. You can change row and column sizes, font types and sizes, colours, number formats, etc. You can even format the cells so that they change colour depending on their value!

5.1 Text and colours

You are free to format text and numbers in cells and give them colours. You can format multiple cells at once as long as you make sure they are selected first.

Many functions in Excel can be found in several ways. The main ways to find a function are by means of the Ribbon, "contextual menus" or shortcut keys.

5.1.1 Formatting using the Ribbon

Most features for text formatting are located in the "Ribbon". Let us practice a little.

- 1. Try typing your name in a cell.
- 2. Ensure the cell is active.

The Ribbon is organised into different Tabs. You need the tab labelled "Home", where you find the formatting functions. Please refer to Figure 28.

C _	🛃 🧐 + 🕲 🚽 🔻 Book1 [Compatibility Mo										y Mode] -
	Hom	ie	Insert	Page L	ayout	For	mulas	Data	Review	View	Acro
Paste	*	Cal B	ibri I <u>U</u>	* 11	• A	A*	= = = = 译律		General	•	Conv Form
Clipboa	rd 5			Font		5	Align	ment 5	Number	5	

Figure 28: Text formatting in the Ribbon.

The buttons in the Ribbon are divided into groups. The group where we find the most important buttons is "Font" group.

3. Click on the button A. The text will likely become red.

	Hom	e Insert	Page Layout	Formulas	Data	Review	Vie
Past	×	Calibri IB Z <u>U</u>	• 11 • A				Ger
cupu	B2		rom (× ✓ f _x	Theme Color	5		140
1	A	В	С			G	
1				Black, Te	xt 1		
2		Mike					
3							
4				Standard Col	ors		
5							
6				😗 More Co	lors		
7							
8							

Figure 29: There are many colours to choose between.

If you have played around with it previously, the text may get a different color, since there are several possibilities. This button has a little arrow on the right side giving access to more options.

4. Try clicking on the small arrow on the button.

This gives you the opportunity to choose between several colours. Click on one of the blue hues. Your text is now blue.

You can also format multiple cells at once.

- 5. Highlight the cell with your name plus some more cells.
- 6. Click on the button in the Ribbon. Now you have a yellow background. Just as with the text, you could also have chosen a different colour.
- 7. If you are still not satisfied, you can click on <u>More Colours</u>, and choose from up to 16 million different colours. That should be enough for most people!
- 8. Click the little arrow on the right button. This button is what we call the "Font Changer". Your font changer might display another font than "Calibri", but you do not risk ruining anything by clicking on it anyway!
- 9. You are about to select another font, so try, for example "Arial Black".
- 10. To the right of the font changer there is a button where you select the font size. Try for example $\underline{24}$. That will make the text much larger.

Try some of the other buttons to discover their effect.

5.1.2 Formatting using the shortcut menu

Modern Windows programs rely largely on the shortcut menus that pop up when you click on something with your right mouse button. In the shortcut menu you find the most frequently used functions related to what you have just clicked on.

- 1. Type you name in a cell and press ENTER.
- 2. Click on the cell with the right mouse button to display the "shortcut menu".



Figure 30: A right-click with the mouse makes the shortcut menu appear.

At the top of the shortcut menu, you will find buttons that resemble those in the Ribbon; they also work just the same way. But we must try some new features.



3. Click on the menu item Format Cells

This will give you access to all the options available to format one or more cells. A dialog box opens, and you can choose between different Tabs at the top.

4. Select the <u>Font</u>, Tab and the following window appears:

Format Cells		? ×
Number Alignment Font Bor	der Fill Protection	
Eont: Calibri Calibri (Headings)	Font style: Size: Regular 111 Regular 9 Bold Bold Italic 11 Bold Italic 11 Y 12 Y 12	
Underline:	Color:	Jormal font
Effects Supgrscript Subscript This is a TrueType font. The same font screen.	AaBbCcYyZi AaBbCcYyZi	z
	ОК	Cancel

Figure 31: Here you can set the font.

5. Select the font size and color that suits you, then click the <u>Fill</u> Tab.

You can choose to fill the cell with a fill colour, a pattern or a colour effect. We have already tried a normal fill colour, so let us try something with effects!

6. Click on the Effects button and a new window will open.

Colors	Color 1	
Two colors		
C Preset	Color 2	
	Color <u>∠</u> ;	
Shading styles		
Shading styles	Variants	
Shading styles Horizontal <u>V</u> ertical	Variants	
Shading styles • Horizontal C Vertical C Diagonal yp	-Variants	
Shading styles G Horizontal Q Vertical Diagonal yp Diagonal down	Variants	Sample:
Shading styles Horizontal Vertical Diagonal <u>up</u> Diagonal <u>down</u> Erom corner	Variants	Sample:
Shading styles G Horigontal C Vertical C Diagonal yp C Diagonal gown C Erom corner C From center	Variants	Sample:

Figure 32: Effect colour.

In Excel the effect colours consist of two colours which gradually blend into each other.

- 7. Try choosing colours by clicking on <u>Colour 1</u> and <u>Colour 2</u>.
- 8. Try clicking on the different Shading Types. When you are satisfied, click OK.
- 9. Click OK again.

My little experiment turned out thus:

1		А	В	С
1	1			
ł	2		Mike	
	3			

Figure 33: My own experiment.

5.1.3 Borders and Frames

When you look at a blank worksheet, there are some thin lines that indicate where the cells are. Without these lines it would be harder to identify a particular cell in the sheet. But these "grid lines" are only auxiliary lines; they are not written out unless you specifically request it, and if you provide some cells with a fill colour, grid lines will not be displayed in that area.

But you can add borders and frames yourself, and you can even choose the colour and how thick they should be.

- 1. Select cell region B2:E5.
- 2. Click with the right mouse button inside the area and select Format Cells.
- 3. Select the <u>Border</u> Tab in the dialog box that appears.

Now we need to make some grid lines. We would like to have a thick border around the selected area and some thin grid lines that show the cells inside the area. It is actually very easy to do, but it is quite difficult to explain because you must click in many different places in the correct order.

I have therefore made the following illustration that shows what you need to click and in what order.

Format Cells
Format Cells ? × Number Alignment Font Border Fill Protection Line Presets Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Automatic Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Image: Color indice Solution Image: Color inditic

Figure 34: The approach used to make grid lines and frames in the selected area.

The window is divided into three groups of objects you can click on. The first group is "Line" where you choose how your edges should look and what colour they should have. The next group is the "Presets", where you can choose between None, Contour and Interior.



Please click the advert



The function None is relevant if you have already made some lines that you want removed. The Contour function makes a frame around the selected cell region with the line you have chosen. The <u>Interior</u> function draws lines *inside* the selected cell regions, which highlights the individual cell.

The final group in the dialog box is "Border", where you can do exactly the same thing as in the group "Presets". The difference is that here you can control exactly which lines you want. For example, you can settle for a thick line at the top and bottom of the marked area or you can choose to have only horizontal interior lines. Let us see how it works. We will follow the numbering in Figure 38.

- 1. First, click the thick line.
- 2. Choose a colour.
- 3. Click on <u>Contour</u>.

You have now defined the frame around the selected area.

- 4. Click on the thin line.
- 5. Choose a colour as in point 2, but preferably a second colour for illustration
- 6. Click on the button for interior horizontal lines.

If you wish, you can choose another line type and colour before you proceed to point 7

7. Click <u>OK</u>.

Your result hopefully looks like mine in Figure 35

Cenb	board -)[Tone		Angrinic	n -)[number	
	F7	-	(f _x			
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G
1							
2							
3							
4							
5							
6							
7							
8							
9							

Figure 35: Frame and gridlines have been added.

Now you should have a good insight into the possibilities for colouring your worksheet. Colours can have a large impact. If used right, they can make a complicated spreadsheet much more logical, simple and inviting. I use formatting for larger spreadsheets, although I may be the only one who needs them. For example, I almost always colour cells with formulas, while I keep cells without formulas white. In this way I can quickly see which numbers are the ones being entered and which are the calculated values.

5.2 Number Formats

We will now leave the department of colours and stripes and return to numbers. Numbers can be displayed in many ways. Which of the following numbers do you think is most readable?

1000000 or 1.000.000

If the figure referred to money, one million could also be written as "kr 1,000,000.00. In other cases you might be interested in controlling how many decimal places to display. This you also control via formatting.

- 1. Type the figure 123456 in cell B2.
- 2. Click with the right mouse button on the cell and choose Format Cells.
- 3. Click on the <u>Number</u> Tab if it has not been selected already.

Now we can choose between a lot of different number formats. In the pane "Category" you can choose between the basic types, and depending on what you choose, different options will appear. Try clicking on the different types, so you get an idea of the possibilities before we proceed. Do not click <u>OK</u>.

Click on the category <u>Number</u>, which will make the dialog box look like Figure 36.

Number Alignment Category: General Number Currency Accounting Date Time Percentage Facebine	Font Border Fill Protection Sample 123456,00 Decimal places: 2	
Fraction Scientific Text Special Custom	-1234,10 -1234,10 -1234,10 -1234,10	
Number is used for gen specialized formatting fo	eral display of numbers. Currency and Accounting offer r monetary value.	

Figure 36: Formatting numbers.

- 4. At Number Of Decimal Places, choose "1".
- 5. Put a check mark by Use Thousands Separator. This means that periods are inserted in the number, like the example with 1.000.000 instead of 1000000.
- 6. Click <u>OK</u>.



Figure 37: The number has been formatted.

Now your number looks like Figure 37. The figure remains the same, but it appears in a different way. Please note that, although only one decimal place is displayed, all decimals are still counted. You will see that if you look at the formula bar when the cell is selected. Number formats have no bearing on the cell value.

7. Type 25% in cell B4 and press ENTER.

In this case Excel assists a little with the number format because it actually displays "25%". What you are not able to see is that the cell's value is actually 0.25. You can discover that by changing the number format to a number with two decimal places. If you wish, you can try it.



I can shape the future. Every day.

The E.ON graduate program requires my energy and creative input. In exchange I get to work with up-to-date technologies in a team that supports my professional development. What about you?

Your energy shapes the future.

www.eon-career.com





Figure 38: By changing the number format it is shown that 25% is the same as 0.25.

5.3 Date and Time

You can write the date and/or time in several ways. When you type a date and/or time, Excel automatically formats the cell to an appropriate date or time format. All you have to do is type it in correctly. Dates will be recognised if you write them in one of the following ways:

25-3-2008 or 25/3/2008

Times will be recognised if you write them in one of the following ways:

17:45 (hours:minutes)17:45:30 (hours:minutes:seconds).

Date and time can of course also be combined by putting spaces in between, for example:

25-03-2008 17:45:30

You can perform calculations with dates and times. Excel uses a clever numbering system to keep track of dates and times.

When there is a date and/or time in a cell, the cell just has a numerical value that is formatted as date/time. This could lead to headaches if it were to be used in a calculation, but it is pretty simple. Excel's calendar begins on January 1 1900, 00.00. This time point has the value "1". January 2 1900, 00:00, has the value "2".

In other words, For each day 1 is added. The time is also part of this system, so January 2 1900 at 12.00 noon, has the value "2.5". One hour thus corresponds to 1/24, or 0.0416666667 to be precise. Actually, Excel operates with 10 decimal places, so you can calculate with very accurate time points.

5.4 Formatting Tables

When working with a spreadsheet, one usually makes tables. Once you have made a table where you have inserted sum formulas, etc., Excel can format the table automatically, so it looks neat and presentable.

C4 🗸 💿			<i>f</i> ∗ 75	0		
	А	В	С	D	E	F
1						
2			January	February	March	
3		Turnover	1000	1200	950	
4		Costs	750	800	780	
5		Surplus	250	400	170	
6						

Figure 39: Create a table like this.

- 1. Create a table like the one in Figure 39.
- 2. Ensure that one of the cells in the table is the active one.
- 3. In the Ribbon, make sure that the "Home" Tab has been selected. Then Click on the <u>Format As Table</u> button in the Ribbon.
- 4. A menu will pop up and you can choose a table layout
- 5. A small box will appear and ask what region you wish to define as the table. It is usually right on target if you have done as I have shown.
- 6. Finally you must also make sure to put a marker in the <u>My Table Has Headers</u> box, which ensures that the column headers are highlighted.
- 7. Click <u>OK</u>.

Now your table should have been formatted with the highlighted title and everything. You can still change the formatting of individual cells if you like. My table came to look like this:

	A	В		С	D	E	F
1							
2		Column1	-	January 🔽	February 🔽	March 💌	
3		Turnover		1000	1200	950	
4		Costs		750	800	780	
5		Surplus		250	400	170	
6							

Figure 40: My table looks like this.

But formatting of the table is not the only thing that has happened. In addition to formatting the table, the Ribbon at the top has changed, and you now see a range of functions that relate to the tables. A Tab has been added in the Ribbon, which is available when you activate a cell in the table.

That is because the tables in Excel are not only about the formatting. There are some special options when you define specific areas of a worksheet as tables, which we will return to later in the book.

52



[]]	(° -) ∓ Book1 [4	Compatibility Mode] - Microsoft Excel	Table Tools	_ = ×
Home Home	Insert Page Layout Fo	rmulas Data Review View	Acrobat Design	@ _ = ×
Table Name:	🕃 Summarize with PivotTable	Properties	🔽 Header Row 📄 First Column	
Table1	Remove Duplicates	💜 🔛 🖏 Open in Browser	🔲 Total Row 📃 Last Column	
🕀 Resize Table	📳 Convert to Range	The second secon	🔽 Banded Rows 📃 Banded Columns	
Properties	Tools	External Table Data	Table Style Options	Table Styles

Figure 41: The Ribbon changes when you format a table.

But it is not the only thing that has happened; some arrows have appeared beside the column headers. These arrows can be used as "filters", where you can select specific data that you want to see. It has no relevance to a table like the one we just created, but if you work with a table with many data covering hundreds of lines it can be very practical. If you print the worksheet, the arrows do not show on the printout, but you can also remove the arrows by disabling the filter. To disable the filter, do as follows:



- 1. Select the Data Tab in the Ribbon.
- 2. Click on the <u>Filter</u> button. It is easy to find because at present the filter is active, which means the button is highlighted with a red/orange colour.

Column1	January 🔽	February 💌	March 💌
Turnover	1000	1200	950

Figure 42: Excel is being "creative" by inserting column headers.



Now the arrows have disappeared from the column headers, but there has also been another change in the table. In the upper left corner it suddenly says "column1". I wondered the first time I saw this in Excel 2007, since I had never seen it before.

The explanation is that when you define a field as a table Excel requires that all columns have a header. This is because Excel will use the headlines in connection with the sorting and filtering features that are available for tables. This is also the reason you cannot delete the text.

You can write anything you want, but Excel does not allow this cell to be empty.

I you want it to be empty anyway, I have a little "trick" for you.

- 1. Activate the cell.
- 2. Press the spacebar on the keyboard.
- 3. Press the ENTER key on your keyboard

Now you have typed an empty space in the cell, and spaces are invisible.

5.5 Conditional Formatting

Excel can change the colour, font, etc. of a cell, depending on what value it has. You can pre-select a number format that shows negative numbers in red, but conditional formatting gives more options.

The way it works is that you give a cell the format you would like it to have as a starting point. Then you set up a list of the alternative formats it can have, and what conditions must be met for it to change the format.

Imagine an example where you want to build up statistics on absenteeism rates among a group of employees. You make a list of employees and a calculation of absence rates.

If the absence rate for the individual employee is less than 5%, the cell should have default formatting. If absence rates are greater than 5% but less than 8%, the cell should be marked with a yellow background colour. If the absenteeism rate is 8% or more, the cell should have white writing on a red background colour.

If you have worked with conditional formatting in earlier versions of Excel, this may not be new to you. But Excel 2007 has introduced a new way to define rules. It has now become much easier. In addition, it has become possible to use a value-dependent colour spectrum, which can give quite impressive results.

	E7	-	0	f_{x}		
	A	В	С	D	E	
1						
2		1	6	11	16	
3		2	7	12	17	
4		3	8	13	18	
5		4	9	14	19	
6		5	10	15	20	
7						
0						

Figure 43: Starting point for the exercise with conditioned formatting

Let us try a couple of exercises.

- 1. Create a spreadsheet as in Figure 43.
- 2. Select the cell region B2: E6. The selected cells will be included in the conditional formatting.
- 3. Ensure that the "Home" Tab has been selected in the Ribbon and click the <u>Conditioned Formatting</u> button.
- 4. In the menu that appears, point to "Top/Bottom Rules" to make a submenu appear.
- 5. Click on Top 10%. This means that those 10% of the cells that have the highest values will be highlighted.

You will now have the opportunity to fine-tune the formatting. A dialog box will appear where you can change the rate distribution. For example, you might want to highlight the cells with the top 20% values.



You also have the opportunity to choose between several predefined formattings by clicking on the list in the dialog box. If you select Custom Format on the list, you can fine-tune the format and choose exactly what colours you want.

- 6. Select Light Red Fill With Dark Red Text.
- 7. Click <u>OK</u>.

Now the cells with the two highest values should be selected. In my case it looks like this:

	A	В	С	D	E	F
1						
2		1	6	11	16	
3		2	7	12	17	
4		3	8	13	18	
5		4	9	14	19	
6		5	10	15	20	
7						

Figure 44: Conditioned formatting where the top 20% values have been highlighted

	А	В	С	D	E	
1						
2		1	6	11	16	
3		2	21	12	17	
4		3	8	13	18	
5		4	9	14	19	
6		5	10	15	20	
7						

Figure 45: The Formatting changes if you change the values.

8. Try typing the number 21 in the cell with the value 7.

This will make the highlight disappear from the cell with the value 19, because now the cells with the values 20 and 21 constitute the top 10%.

- 9. Select all the cells again.
- 10. Select the <u>Conditioned Formatting</u> button again.
- 11. Point to Highlight Cell Rules to make a submenu appear.
- 12. Click on <u>Between</u>, which gives us the opportunity to highlight cells with values within a certain range.
- 13. In the dialog box that appears, write 15 in the first field and 20 in the second field.
- 14. Choose the format Yellow Fill With Dark Yellow Text.
- 15. Click OK.

If you have followed my instructions to the letter, your spreadsheet now looks like this:

Now you have two different conditional formatting that work in the same cells. First, the top 10% of cells are

coloured pink, and then the cells with values between 15 and 20 are coloured yellow. The conditions operate in the order you created them. It was the yellow formatting that was created last, therefore the cell with the value 20 is also yellow, although it was previously pink.





Engineer your Future at DTU

MSc in Engineering programs

All of DTU 26 English-taught MSc programs consist of research-based courses taught by faculty members performing research at the highest international levels.

In 2008, the Leiden Ranking rated DTU number 5 among Europe's 100 technical universities, and THES ranked DTU number 20 globally and number 3 in Europe measured by scientific impact in engineering.

A study by iGraduate shows that more than 90 pct. International Students will recommend DTU.

Click here vww.dtu.dl

- 16. Ensure the cell region we have been working with so far is selected.
- 17. Click on the <u>Conditioned Formatting</u> button again.
- 18. Choose the menu item Administer Rules in the menu that appears.

Conditional Formatting Rules Manager										
Show formatting rules for:	rent Selection	[
🔡 New Rule 🔅 Edit Rule X Delete Rule 🔹 🔹										
Rule (applied in order shown)	Format	Applies to			Stop If True	-				
Cell Value between 15	AaBbCcYyZz	=\$B\$2:\$E\$6	i .							
Top 10%	AaBbCcYyZz	=\$B\$2:\$E\$6	i i		V					
L			1		1	-				
			OK	Cancel	Apply					

Figure 46: Rule management for conditioned formatting

You now have the ability to manage the order of the rules you have set up for conditional formatting. You can also add, delete or modify rules. In this exercise we just need to reverse the order.

- 19. Ensure that the rule for <u>Cell Value between 15 and 20 has been chosen</u>.
- 20. Click on the Move Down button. It looks like this:
- 21. Click OK.

Now you spreadsheet looks like this:

	А	В	С	D	E
1					
2		1	6	11	16
3		2	21	12	17
4		3	8	13	18
5		4	9	14	19
6		5	10	15	20
7					

Figure 47: Now the cell med the value "20" has become pink again.

Now the rule is applied to highlight the top 10% values last, so cell E6 has become pink again.

There are many other possibilities for conditional formatting. It is, for example, possible to give the cell a hue from pale yellow to deep red, depending on how high the value is. Many of these options arguably belong to the "extra icing on the cake" category, but they can also be used to make the spreadsheet more readable.

5.6 Themes and Styles

Themes and Styles is a new option in Excel 2007, but you probably recognise Styles from Word and PowerPoint, where they have been used in many earlier versions.

Use of Themes and Styles helps you make "nice" worksheets where you can easily create a uniform and neat appearance. As you might have noticed by now, I like to emphasise that the spreadsheet should do more than just calculate correctly. If you are building large and complicated spreadsheets to be used by anyone other than yourself, it is important that it is logical and clearly structured, and preferably nice to look at. When it is neat and easy to understand, there will not be so many mistakes. It will also make it more credible.

If you got good grades for your arithmetic homework in school, you probably know what I mean. If you did not get good grades, it might be a consolation that Excel now can assist you.

Themes can be regarded as an overarching set of guidelines for the fonts and colour combinations you can use in your spreadsheet. You can even define your own Themes, but Excel comes with many predefined Themes where the colours already match nicely. A Theme defines for example that all header cells must have green background colour and be written in bold type, while cells with formulas should be bright green. If you change the Theme for the entire worksheet, the changes will be reflected in all the cells to which you have assigned a "Style".

A style is something you assign to each cell. You can for example define that cell B2, C2 and D2 are headings in a table, while the cells below are general number-cells. At the bottom you might have calculated a sum, in which case you can give the lower cells the style "Calculation".

Let us see how it works.

1. Start with a blank spreadsheet and create a table as shown in Figure 48. The table does not really make sense and is only meant as an example.

	A	В	С	D	E	
1						
2			January	February	March	
3		Monday	1	6	11	
4		Tuesday	2	7	12	
5		Wensday	3	8	13	
6		Thursday	4	9	14	
7		Friday	5	10	15	
8		Sum	15	40	65	
9						

Figure 48: The starting point for the exercise.

We start by assigning a "theme" to the spreadsheet. This theme will affect our subsequent formatting of the spreadsheet.

- 2. Choose the <u>Page Layout</u> Tab in the Ribbon and click on the button furthest to the left, called <u>Themes</u> (Figure 49).
- 3. A menu will appear where you can choose between various different themes. Click on the <u>Sequence</u> theme.



Figure 49: Choosing theme.

At the moment there are few visible changes in the spreadsheet. Only the font in the cells has changed.



Styles

- 4. Select the cell region C2:E2.
- 5. Choose <u>Home</u> Tab in the Ribbon and click on the <u>Cell Styles</u> button.

Good, Bad and N	eutral				
Normal	Bad	Good	Neutral		
Data and Model					
Calculation	Check Cell	Explanatory	Input	Linked Cell	Note
Output	Warning Text				
Titles and Headin	gs				
Heading 1	Heading 2	Heading 3	Heading 4	Title	Total
Themed Heading	a 1				
20% - Accent1	20% - Accent2	20% - Accent3	20% - Accent4	20% - Accent5	20% - Accent6
40% - Accent1	40% - Accent2	40% - Accent3	40% - Accent4	40% - Accent5	40% - Accent6
60% - Accent1	60% - Accent2	60% - Accent3	60% - Accent4	60% - Accent5	60% - Accent6
Accent1	Accent2	Accent3	Accent4	Accent5	Accent6
Number Format					
Comma	Comma [0]	Currency	Currency [0]	Percent	
New Cell Style	2				
Merge Styles					

Figure 50: Choosing Cell Style.

When you click the Cell Style button, a menu will appear where you can choose from a variety of named Styles. When you point to the individual Styles with your mouse, you can see how it will look in your table.

- 6. Click on the Style <u>Heading 1</u>.
- 7. Select cell region B3:B8.
- 8. Click the <u>Cell Styles</u> button and choose the style <u>Accent1</u>.
- 9. Select cell region C8:E8.
- 10. Click on the Cell Style button and choose the <u>Calculation</u> Style.

If you have done as I, your spreadsheet will look like this:

	A	В	С	D	E	F	G			
1										
2			January	Februa	March					
3		Monday	1	6	11					
4		Tuesday	2	7	12					
5		Wensday	3	8	13					
6		Thursday	4	9	14					
7		Friday	5	10	15					
8		Sum	15	40	65					
9										
10										
	Figure 51: Table with Styles.									

Now we will try some other colours, but we do not want to format the individual cells again so we will choose a different colour theme.

Select the <u>Page Layout</u> Tab in the Ribbon, then click the <u>Themes</u> button Search. Click on the theme Sumptuous (anything less will not do!). Now your spreadsheet looks like this:

	A	В	С	D	Е	
1						
2			Janua	Februa	March	
3		Monday	1	6	11	
4		Tuesday	2	7	12	
5		Wensday	3	8	13	
6		Thursday	4	9	14	
7		Friday	5	10	15	
8		Sum	15	40	65	
9						

Figure 52: Spreadsheet with the the "Sumptuous".

Now you have been introduced to Themes and Styles, and you can now experiment with them on your own.

If you continue working with Themes and Styles, you may also find that when you insert charts, graphs etc., they will also have colours defined in the colour theme you have chosen, and so it all fits together.

6. Working with Tables

Basically everything in Excel is tables, except the diagrams. A spreadsheet is itself a large table. When I talk about tables, I mean defined regions in the spreadsheet with a group of data. This group of data has some column headers and maybe, but not necessarily, some row headers.

We have already worked a little with tables in connection with formatting. If you have read the section on formatting tables, you might remember that several things happened beyond giving the table some nice colours.

6.1 Create a Table

The starting point for the exercises in this book is a small list of different movies that I have in my DVD collection. The list should perhaps include 150 movies, but I am pretty sure that in that you would not want to do the exercise!

We therefore confine ourselves to five films, which should be enough to get an understanding of working with tables. With so few rows, it seems foolish to make grades and filterings, but I will ask you to imagine that we are doing the same with a long list.

Careers for heavyweights

You've got a good brain. milkround.com will make the most of it.

milkround.com is dedicated to finding graduates careers in the industries they want to work in.

Register now and weigh up the best possible start to your career.

Please click the advert



If you have a collection of movies, music or anything else, you could make a small index of it afterwards to practice what you have learned in this section.

1. To get some material to work with in the following exercises you must create a spreadsheet similar to the one shown in Figure 53. You are probably going to have to adjust the width of the columns to be able to view all of it.

	F8	$ f_x$					
	A	В	С	D	Е	F	G
1							
2		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
3		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131	
4		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137	
5		Der Untergang	Bruno Ganz	Deutch	2004	150	
6		Flashing lights	Søren Pilmark	Danish	2000	109	
7		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170	
8							
9							
10							

Figure 53: Starting point for the exercise.

- 2. Place the cursor, so one of the cells inside the table is the active cell.
- 3. In the Ribbon, ensure the Home Tab is selected, then click the button Format as Table.
- 4. Click on a table colour. You have now created your table.

C	9 -	(° -) = Boo	ok1 [Compatib	ility Mo	de] - Microso	ft Excel				Table Tools		
	Home	Insert Page	Layout Fo	ormulas	Data	Revie	w Viev	v	Acrobat	Design		
Table Table (Image: Reference of the second	Name: 2 esize Table	Summarize wit	h PivotTable cates nge	Expor	t Refresh	Proper Open i Unlink	iies n Browser		Header Row Total Row Banded Row	E First (E Last C /s E Band	Column Column ed Columns	
Pro	operties	Tools			External Ta	able Dat	а		Table	Style Option	ns -	
	F7	- (•	<i>f</i> ∗ 170									
	A		В		С		D		Е		F	
1												
2		Title		-		•	anguage	-	Year 🔽	Play mine	in min 📘	
3		Middle of the n	ight		Kim Larsen) an ish		1984		131	
4		The hunt for re	d October		Sean Conne	ery E	nglish		1990		137	
5		Der Untergang			Bruno Ganz	2 [)eutch		2004		150	
6		Flashing lights			Søren Pilm	ark [) an ish		2000		109	
7		Scarface			Al Pachino	E	nglish		1893		170	
0												

Figure 54: Sample table. Note that the Ribbon at the top has changed.

This table is the starting point for several exercises to come.

6.2 Filtering

Once you have created a table, you have to use filters on it. You use filters to select and show certain data in the table, according to criteria which you have defined.

Excel operates with two different types of filters called "AutoFilter" and "Advanced Filter".AutoFilter is readily available in the column headings when you have defined a table. Advanced Filter requires a little more work, but it also gives you more options.

In practice AutoFilter is by far the easiest to use, and it can deal with most tasks. Advanced Filter is preferable if you want to filter your table based on values in cells outside of the table you are filtering.

6.2.1 AutoFilter

The AutoFilter is located at the top of the table in the headers. As you may have noticed, a button has appeared next to each heading. By clicking the buttons you will have access to AutoFilter.

In our exercise, we want the table to show pre-1990 Danish films. The approach is that we look at which columns contain data that we want to find. Then we take one column at a time and define the criteria for it.

1. Click on the arrow to the right of the header "Language".

A menu will appear, where you have different options relating to sorting and filtering the column, Do not choose any of the sorting options yet; we will look at that later.



Figure 55: Filtering options.

In the menu that appeared you can also see a list of all the values you have typed into the 'Language" column. In our case it is "Danish" "English" and "German". At the moment there's a "tick" next to all three values, which means we have not filtered anything out yet.

- 2. Click on the selection by <u>Select All</u> to make the markers disappear.
- 3. Then insert a marker by English. Now it should only be "English", that is marked, as in Figure 60
- 4. Click on OK.

You have created the first filter, so you are shown only Danish film titles. The other films are still there, but they are hidden at the moment. Notice the spreadsheet row numbers on the left side. Row

You Tube

	А	В	С	D	Е	F	G
1							
2		Title 💽	protagonist 🔽	Language 🏼 🗐	Year 🔽	Play mine in min 🔽	
4		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137	
7		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170	
0							

Figure 56: Now only Danish film titles from the list are shown.

4, 5 and 7 are not displayed, and the rows that contain filtered data are shown in blue row numbers. When row numbers are blue, it means that a filter is active.

It also means that you must think carefully if you want to create two tables with different filters side by side. Excel hides the entire row in the worksheet when a cell value does not satisfy a given criterion. So if you have a second table standing next to the table you are filtering, you may inadvertently hide data in it.

The aim of our exercise was to find pre-1990 Danish film titles, so we need to filter by year. To filter by year before 1990, we have to define a "custom filter".

- 5. Click on the small arrow next to the header "Year"
- 6. In the menu that appears, point to Number Filters.
- 7. A submenu will appear. Click on Less Than to open a dialog box.

EVER CONSIDERED STUDYING FOOD AT WAGENINGEN UNIVERSITY?

Are you interested in a master study programme featuring all aspects of Food? Consider studying at Wageningen University in the Netherlands today. There you will find studies that focus on **health food**, the **quality of food**, **food safety**, **innovative technologies**, **consumer behaviour** and more. This multidisciplinary approach truly makes the master study programmes and your time at Wageningen University unique!

Visit www.wageningenuniversity.eu for more information.

orotagon iean 2↓ Al Pa X↓	ist ▼ Language	/ear 💌	Play mine in min 137 170
	Sor <u>t</u> by Color <u>C</u> lear Filter From "Year" Fjlter by Color	۰ ۲	
	Number <u>F</u> ilters (Select All) 1993 1990		Equals Does <u>N</u> ot Equal <u>G</u> reater Than Greater Than <u>O</u> r Equal To Less Than Less Than Or Egual To Between Top 10
	ок с	ancel	Below Average Custom <u>F</u> ilter

Figure 57: The Filter "Less than ".

In the dialog box you must indicate that you want to see the rows of the table where the year is "less than' 1990. The dialog box allows you to specify two different criteria, but in this exercise we only use one.

Custom AutoFilter	? X							
Show rows where: Year								
is less than 💽 1990	•							
⊙ <u>A</u> nd C <u>O</u> r								
	•							
Use ? to represent any single character Use * to represent any series of characters								
OK	Cancel							

Figure 58: Custom filter.

8. Fill out the dialog box as shown in Figure 58 and click OK.

Now we have used filters on the columns, "Language" and "Year", and the result should look like Figure 59:

	A	В	С	D	Е	F	
1							
2		Title 💌	protagonist 🔽	Language 🛛 🗐	Year 🛛 🖓	Play mine in min 🔽	
- 7 -		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170	
8							
0							

Figure 59: The result of our exercise with filters.

After all the hard work creating the filters we must remove them again. Fortunately, it is fairly easy, and it can be done in two ways. The first method is to remove the filters individually from each column. We will try with "Year".

- 9. Click on the filter button next to the header "Year".
- 10. In the menu that appears, click on Remove Filter From "Year"



Figure 60: Remove a filter.

Now the two Danish movies in our collection are shown again. The other way of removing filters is used to remove all filters at once.

- 11. Make one of the cells in the table the active cell.
- 12. In the Ribbon, click the Data Tab.
- 13. Click the Filter button. It is easy to find because it will be yellow/orange at this point.



Figure 61: The filter button is easy to find.

The filters have been removed and all the rows in the table are shown again.

6.2.2 Advanced Filter

The Advanced Filter works in a completely different way than the AutoFilter. In the Advanced Filter you must create an additional table named "criteria range" with the same column headings as the table that you want to filter. In the extra table you must specify the criteria and tell Excel where to find the criteria.

Finally, you must also indicate whether you want the table filtered by hiding rows, or by writing the results elsewhere in the spreadsheet. The latter option means you do not have any hidden rows.

In this exercise, we continue working with the list of our small film collection. Again, it seems extremely foolish to filter a table with five rows, but it is easier to understand the different concepts when we only have little data to work with.

First we must make some space above the table for our Criteria Range. At least three blank rows above the table are required for the criteria range, since there are some rules that must be observed to make it work:

- The Criteria Range should have column headings, and it must be the same as the column headings in the table to be filtered.
- ✓ The Criteria Range should have room for at least one row of criteria.
- ✓ There must be at least one empty row acting as the space between the criteria range and the table to be filtered.

In this exercise, there should be room for three series of criteria, so we must have five blank rows above the table to make room for it all. We can either do this by simply moving the table four rows down, or by inserting four empty rows above it. We choose the latter.

- 1. Click with the right mouse button on the column heading for row "1". A menu will pop up.
- 2. Click on Insert (Not to be confused with Paste,).

You have now added an empty row at the top. We need three more, but since I was born lazy and want to teach you some small tweaks, we will not repeat the same procedure again.



Please click the advert

ΤοτΑι

3. Hold the CTRL key on the keyboard down and press the Y key three times.

When you hold down the CTRL key and press the Y key, you use the command "Repeat last action". It works for many commands, and in all MS-Office programs. It also works in many other programs.

Now your spreadsheet looks like this:

	A1					
	A	В	C	D	Е	F
1						
2	-					
3						
4						
5						
6		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min
7		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131
0						
0		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137
9		The hunt for red October Der Untergang	Sean Connery Bruno Ganz	English Deutch	1990 2004	137 150
9 10		The hunt for red October Der Untergang Flashing lights	Sean Connery Bruno Ganz Søren Pilmark	English Deutch Danish	1990 2004 2000	137 150 109
9 10 11		The hunt for red October Der Untergang Flashing lights Scarface	Sean Connery Bruno Ganz Søren Pilmark Al Pachino	English Deutch Danish English	1990 2004 2000 1893	137 150 109 170

Figure 62: Now there is room for the criteria range.

Now we need some column headings for the criteria range, Since they are the same as in the table, we can just copy those.

- 4. Select cell region B6:F6.
- 5. Hold the CTRL key on the keyboard down and press the C key.
- 6. Activate cell B1.
- 7. Hold the CTRL key on the keyboard down and press the V key.

Your spreadsheet should now look like Figure 63:

								_
	B1	▼ 💿 🦸 🕺 Title						
	А	В	C	D	E	F	G	
1		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	ļ	
2								
3								
4								
5								
6		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min		
- 7 -		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131		
8		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137		
9		Der Untergang	Bruno Ganz	Deutch	2004	150		
10		Flashing lights	Søren Pilmark	Danish	2000	109		
11		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170		
12								
13								

Figure 63: The criteria range with column headings.

Now we can define some criteria, but I would like to try to explain how the criteria range works, because it is not always easy to grasp.

As mentioned, the criteria range is designed as a table with rows and columns. The columns have headings that correspond to those in the table that is to be filtered according to the criteria. There is obviously a reason why you can write multiple rows of criteria, namely that you can put "AND" or "OR" between the criteria.

Criteria with "AND" in between are placed in the same row Criteria with "OR" between are placed in separate rows.

An example in our table could be that we want to display rows in the table containing films that are Danish AND prior to1990.

- 7. Type the word "Danish" in cell D2.
- 8. Type "<1990" in cell E2 (means "less than 1990").
- 9. Activate another cell in the table you want to filter, for example C7.
- 10. Choose the <u>Data</u> Tab in the Ribbon.
- 11. Click on the Advanced button in the Ribbon.

onnections roperties dit Links tions	Az↓ Z↓	AZA Sort	Filter	K Clear Reapply Advanced	Text to Columns	Remove Duplicates Date	Data \ P Consc P What- a Tools
• (•	f _x	Sean C	Connery	Advanced			
В			pro	Specify comp which record result set of a	lex criteria ls are inclu a query.	to limit ded in the	1990 P
							_

Figure 64: The Advanced button.

This opens the <u>Advanced filter</u> dialog box, where you must define what is to be filtered and where the criteria are.

- 12. Make sure that <u>Filter List Locally</u> is selected. This means that the filter, like AutoFilter is hiding the rows that do not meet the criteria.
- 13. The field <u>List Range</u> has probably been inserted automatically. It should say "\$B\$6:\$F\$11", which is the cell region we are going to filter.
- 14. In the field <u>Criteria Range</u> you must delete what you have previously inserted, since it is often wrong. With the mouse, mark cell region B1:F2. It should now say " 'SHEET 1'!\$B\$1:\$F\$2" in this field. Do not get confused when it says "Sheet1'!" in front of the cell reference. That is because it is possible to work in multiple sheet tabs in Excel, although we do not for this exercise.
- 15. Click <u>OK</u>.

This gives the result "Midt om Natten", which is the only film title that fulfils both criteria (Figure 65).

	1 A	В	С	D	Е	F	
1		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
2				English	1990		
3							
4							
5							
6		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
8		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137	
12							
13							

Figure 65: Two criteria with AND between.

Another example could be that we wish to view the rows in the table containing either Danish films OR pre-1990 film titles. In other words, we want to view all the Danish film titles and all pre-1990 films.



Figure 66: The Clear button.

- 16. In the Ribbon, click the Clear button, which will cancel the filtration.
- 17. Erase contents in cell E2.
- 18. Type "<1990" in cell E3.
- 19. Select a cell in the table you want to filter and click on the <u>Advanced button in the Ribbon</u>.
- 20. Fill in the dialog box as previously shown, but this time the Criteria Range is"
- 'SHEET1'!\$B\$1:\$F\$3", since we have several criteria.
- 21. Click OK.

This gives us three rows, "Midt om Natten" which is Danish, "Blinkende Lygter", which is also Danish, and "Scarface", which is not Danish, but which is from before the year 1990 (Figure 67). Each film need only meet one of the listed criteria when it says OR between them.



Please click the advert

	A	В	С	D	Е	F
1		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min
2				English		
3					<1990	
4						
5						
6		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min
7		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131
8		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137
9		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170
10						

Figure 67: Two criteria with OR between.

You can also combine. If you want the filtered table to show films that are EITHER Danish AND prior to 1990, OR all films after 1990, it looks like this:

	A	В	С	D	Е	F	
1		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
2				English	<1990		
3					>1990		
4							
5							
6		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
7		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131	
8		Der Untergang	Bruno Ganz	Deutch	2004	150	
9		Flashing lights	Søren Pilmark	Danish	2000	109	
10							

Figure 68: Three criteria with a combination of AND and OR.

When you combine AND and OR it is important to know the math behind. When you type in two rows of criteria, all the criteria in the same row should be considered one large criterion. Thus in our last example we had two criteria of which the first criterion was a combination of two criteria that both had to be fulfilled.

	A	В	C	D	Е	F	
1		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
2					1990		
3							
4							
5							
6		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
7		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131	
8		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137	
9		Der Untergang	Bruno Ganz	Deutch	2004	150	
10		Flashing lights	Søren Pilmark	Danish	2000	109	
11		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170	
10							

Figure 69: The year is based on a formula. Note the Formula Bar.

6.2.3 Advanced Filter with Formulas

When using the advanced filter, you are not limited to manually having to write the criteria every time. You can also write equations where the outcome serves as a criterion in the filter. For example, if you had to extract values from a table with a filter which is based on a calculation either directly in the filter or as a result of a complicated calculation elsewhere in the spreadsheet or workbook.

In our previous exercise, you might wish to change to a year in cell H2, which you import to cell E2 using the formula "=H2".
If you run the filter, the movie with the year 1990 will be the only one that meets the criterion. But what if you want to view the list of all movies from before the year 1990? This requires that it says "<1990" in the criterion, but how is that done with a formula?

The answer is that you must use what is called a "text string". As you may be aware, Excel knows the difference between numbers and text. If you want a formula to display text, the text must be surrounded by double quotes.

In our formula, we need to show text in the form of "<" and a number based on the content in cell H2. This is done by typing = "<" & H2 in cell E2. In principle the formula should show only two different values, and when you have to do something like that you always have to separate the different values with an & symbol.

	A	В	С	D	Е	F
1						
2		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min
3		Der Untergang	Bruno Ganz	Deutch	2004	150
4		Flashing lights	Søren Pilmark	Danish	2000	109
5		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131
6		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170
7		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137

Figure 70: The Filter with a slightly more advanced formula. Again, notice the Formula Bar.

When you write a formula where you use the & symbol to display multiple values in succession, Excel will always consider the result as a piece of text. One would expect that to cause problems when we want to filter according to numbers, but in this case Excel is clever enough to figure out what you mean.

6.3 Sorting

Of course you can also sort by the various columns in the table. Like so much else in Excel, there is a simple and a complicated way of doing so.

We are working with the same table that we used when we were working with filters. But since we do not need filters anymore, I have deleted the top four rows in order to save a little space. You can do the same if you want, but it is not required.

First we will sort the list so the films appear in alphabetical order

- 1. Make one of the cells in the column "Title" the active one.
- 2. Ensure the Data Tab has been selected in the Ribbon
- 3. Click on the <u>Sort A-Z</u> button to sort in ascending order.



Figure 71: The Sort A-Z button.

Now the list has been sorted alphabetically.

	A	В	С	D	E	F	
1							
2		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min	
3		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131	
4		Flashing lights	Søren Pilmark	Danish	2000	109	
5		Der Untergang	Bruno Ganz	Deutch	2004	150	
6		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170	
7		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137	
0							

Figure 72: The table has been sorted according to title.

That was the simplest method for sorting. But you can also sort multiple columns at once, by ranking columns according to what must be sorted first.

In the following exercise we want to sort by language first, then by year.

- 4. Activate one of the cells in the table. It does not matter which one you choose.
- 5. Click on the Data Tab in the Ribbon, then click on the Sort button.



A dialog box appears, where you must specify which columns you want sorted, and what level each column should be sorted by in relation to each other.

Sort				<u>? ×</u>
⇔ ₂ j <u>A</u> dd Level	imes Delete Level	🔄 Copy Level 🛛 💿 🔍	Options	My data has <u>h</u> eaders
Column		Sort On	Order	
Sort by Title	•	Values	 A to Z 	•
1				
				OK Cancel

Figure 73: The dialog box "Sort".

- 6. In Figure 73 you can see what you must choose. You should sort the column "Language", according to values in ascending order
- 7. Click on the <u>Add Level</u> button to specify another sorting level.

			<u>? X</u>
Level 🗙 <u>D</u> elete Level	🖹 Copy Level 🛛 🔹 🕔	Diptions	. My data has <u>h</u> eaders
	Sort On		Order
Language 💌	Values	•	A to Z
Year	Values	•	Smallest to Largest 🔹
			OK Cancel
	Level <u>P</u> elete Level	Level X Delete Level Copy Level Sort On Language V Values Year Values	Level X Delete Level Gopy Level & Options Sort On Language Values V Year Values V Values V

Figure 74: The second sorting level is being defined.

8. Choose as shown in Figure 74 and click OK.

The table now looks like this:

	A	В	С	D	E	F
1						
2		Title	protagonist	Language	Year	Play mine in min
3		Middle of the night	Kim Larsen	Danish	1984	131
4		Flashing lights	Søren Pilmark	Danish	2000	109
5		Der Untergang	Bruno Ganz	Deutch	2004	150
6		Scarface	Al Pachino	English	1893	170
7		The hunt for red October	Sean Connery	English	1990	137
-						

Figure 75: The table has been sorted by language and year.

The Films have now been sorted by language and year.

You have now learned the basics about filtering and sorting tables. Now we need to try some slightly more advanced features, since it goes without saying that Excel can perform calculations on such a table as well.

6.4 Pivot Tables

To "Pivot" means something like "turning around a centre." In Excel we use pivot tables to do some sophisticated summaries and calculations on an existing table. You are able to very quickly analyse different things from different perspectives. That is probably why Microsoft has chosen to call them "pivot tables".

We will continue working with our movie file, where we will now make some quick calculations with a pivot table.

- 1. Make one of the cells in the table the active one. Another Tab will appear in the Ribbon called <u>Design</u>.
- 2. Click on the Design Tab in the Ribbon.
- 3. Click on the Summarize With Pivot Table Tab in the Ribbon.



Figure 76: The <u>Summarize with Pivot Table</u> Tab.

4. Leave the settings as they are and click <u>OK</u>.

Now we have created an empty pivot table and are ready to feed it information. But first, we have to take a look at the pivot table's work range.



Figure 77: Work area when working with pivot tables.



77

The work area consists of three essential elements:

- The actual pivot table that shows the result of our choices.
- A field list, where we choose what data to use in the pivot table. When we work with pivot tables a "field" corresponds to a column in the table that we pull data from. The field list contains the equivalent to the columns in our directory.
- An area for placement of fields from the field list. The pivot table's look and performance depends on how we place the fields in these four windows. Fields to be placed in the window "Column Labels" will form a number of columns in the pivot table corresponding to different values in the table. The same is the case for the series labels. Fields to be placed in the window "Values" will be the cells used for calculations in the pivot table. Finally, there is the pane "Report Filter". It can be used for selecting data from the table based on various criteria.



Figure 78: Drag using the mouse.

To make calculations, we must drag some fields from the field list to the area for placement of fields.

- 5. Point to the field <u>Running Time In Minutes</u> in the field list.
- 6. Click with the left mouse button and hold it down while dragging the field down to the <u>Values</u> pane. Now, release the mouse button. Refer to Figure 78.

The pivot table now displays the sum of the running times for all movies in the directory.

We could also have done that using a simple formula, so let us try something a bit more advanced.

7. Drag the Language field into the "Row Labels" pane.

	A5 🗸 💿	<i>f</i> ∗ D	anish
	A	В	С
1	Drop Page Fields Hen	е	
2			
3	Sum of Play mine in min		
4	Language 🔽	Total	
5	Danish	240	
6	Deutch	150	
7	English	307	
8	Grand Total	697	
9			

Figure 79: Total running time for each language.

Now you have a sum of running times for each language. Do you see the trick?

Of course, Excel can do more than calculating sums. You can also get the number of movie titles, or you can calculate averages, running sums, and even standard deviation and variance, if you need it

8. Double-click on cell B3, which is the column label "Sum of running time in minutes."

Value Field Settings	? X
Source Name: Play mine in min	
Custom Name: Sum of Play mine in min	
Summarize by Show values as	
Summarize value field by	
Choose the type of calculation that you want to use to summ the data from selected field	arize
Sum Count Average Max Min Product	
Number Format OK Can	cel

Figure 80: Settings for the value field.

A dialog box appears (Figure 80), where you can choose what the pivot table should do about the numbers. You can change what should be in the column label, and you can select what should be counted out. There is also the option to change number format by clicking the <u>Number Format</u> button

9. Click Number on the list, and then OK.

Now the pivot table shows that we have two Danish, two English and a German film in our directory. In this context, it does not matter if we have used the field "Year" or any other field. With the "Number" feature Excel simply notes that there is a value, and counts it as 1.

10. Drag the field <u>Year</u> from the field list into the "Column Labels" pane.

	A	В	С	D	Е	F	G
1	Drop Page Fields Here						
2							
3	Count of Play mine in min	Year 🔽					
4	Language 💽 🔽	1893	1984	1990	2000	2004	Grand Total
5	Danish		1		1		2
6	Deutch					1	1
- 7 -	English	1		1			2
8	Grand Total	1	1	1	1	1	5
Q							

Figure 81: Now the years have become column labels.

You now have an overview of how many movies you have in each language from different years. The pivot table automatically inserts totals to the right and bottom. Maybe that is not the best way to display it, so it is fortunate that we can have multiple row and column headings at the same time.

11. Drag the field Year down into the Column "labels" pane. Thus there will be two fields in this pane, and Year will disappear from the "Column Labels" pane.



It now looks like this:

	-			_
	А	В	С	
1				
2				
3	Sum of Play mine in min			
4	Language 💽 🔽	Year 🔽	Total	
5	■Danish	1984	131	
6		2000	109	
7	■Deutch	2004	150	
8	∃English	1893	170	
9		1990	137	
10	Grand Total		697	

Figure 82: Two column labels.

Be aware that labels are tiered. In the pane "Row Labels" you have <u>language</u> at the top, and so the pivot table will group data by language first, then year. By default Excel inserts a "Subtotal" of the overall levels. For example, it says "2" next to the "English" label. This is very smart, but it can also be a problem if later you need to work with data elsewhere. You can omit the subtotals by clicking the right mouse button on one of the labels (eg. cell A7) and click on <u>Subtotal for "Language"</u>.

	А		В	C
1				
2				
3	Sum of Play mine in min	ì		
4	Language	•	Year 🔽	Total
5	■Danish		1984	. 131
6			2000	109
7	Danish Total			240
8	■Deutch		2004	150
9	Deutch Total			150
10	■English		1893	170
11			1990	137
12	English Total			307
13	Grand Total			697
14				

Figure 83: Pivot table with report filter.

As is the case with row labels, you can also have column labels in several levels. My experience is that it is only something you should do in an emergency, as it tends to get confusing. You can also drag multiple values into the "Values" window, but I believe you would find that quite unmanageable. It is better to make an extra pivot table or to use the kind of filters I will describe for you next

Notice that there is a small button in cell A3. By using that you can create a filter exactly like an AutoFilter in a common table. If you want to, you can experiment with it yourself.

There is also another filter option for pivot tables.

12. Drag the field Protagonist down into the pane "Report Filter".

Now an extra filter is placed on the pivot table.

13. Click on the button B1 and choose Al Pacino.

This will ensure that only data in which Al Pacino is the protagonist will be displayed. In this case it is only one film.

6.4.1 Preserving Results

Once you have set up a pivot table and used some filters, you might want to preserve the calculation that you made, even if you also want to continue working with the pivot table. You can copy the pivot table to another location, so you have two pivot tables to work with. You can also, once you have copied the table to the clipboard, choose to insert the table somewhere else as "values". This clears it of all pivot functionality, and it can be treated as pure data with no risk of further changes.

6.4.2 A Couple of Tips on Pivot Tables

Pivot tables are an excellent tool for analysing and summarising large amounts of data, but you can also quickly lose track if you "bury" the table in too many labels on several levels.

It is a good idea to take small steps when you build a PivotTable. Start with the value field and then insert some row labels. Finally insert the column labels. This is the approach that best ensures that you have an overview of the table throughout the construction phase

Consider what should be row labels and what should be column labels before you begin. A field with many different values will provide as many labels, while a field that can have only three different values will only create three labels.

In my experience it is best to use fields with few values as column labels and let the fields with many values be row labels. If you have many column labels, the table quickly becomes very wide and thus confusing.

If you need to do a complex pivot table where you have to have labels at multiple levels, you may wish to consider the use of filters. Otherwise, you can decide whether it is better to make two different pivot tables that are manageable in isolation, instead of one big confusing table.

7. Charts

Now we get to something most people find enjoyable. We will create charts. Long data series and tables can be extremely tedious to watch, and you can often make data more readable by visualizing them in a chart instead. Excel offers lots of possibilities to make some really nice graphs that can illustrate many different types of data.

In this book, we must first make a bar chart. The bar chart will be the basis for a series of exercises where we work with the various options and other things you can do with a chart. Then the other chart types will be described in outline, so you can experiment with adjusting them.

3D charts will not be reviewed in this book, because it is something you can easily figure out yourself once you have learned the basics of bar, basket and pie charts. 3D charts are beautiful and can really impress, but you should also be aware that they may be harder to read accurately. However, in a sales brochure are they do look good!

7.1 Bar Charts

To get started with charts, we need some data to work with. Create a spreadsheet similar to the one shown in Figure 91. We will use this spreadsheet for the next several exercises.

Brain power

By 2020, wind could provide one-tenth of our planet's electricity needs. Already today, SKF's innovative know-how is crucial to running a large proportion of the world's wind turbines.

Up to 25 % of the generating costs relate to maintenance. These can be reduced dramatically thanks to our systems for on-line condition monitoring and automatic lubrication. We help make it more economical to create cleaner, cheaper energy out of thin air.

By sharing our experience, expertise, and creativity, industries can boost performance beyond expectations. Therefore we need the best employees who can neet this challenge!

The Power of Knowledge Engineering

5KF

Plug into The Power of Knowledge Engineering. Visit us at www.skf.com/knowledge The spreadsheet is an energy accounting, which shows a random English family's consumption of heating oil and electricity over a year. The data are entirely fictional, and the task is not to come to any conclusions about the family's total CO2 emissions!

	A	В	С	D	
1					
2					
3			Oil in Liters	EL in kWh	
4		January	425	480	
5		February	410	486	
6		March	378	370	
7		April	198	388	
8		May	66	365	
9		June	68	370	
10		July	61	328	
11		August	62	379	
12		September	73	398	
13		Oktober	112	402	
14		November	250	465	
15		December	410	512	
16					

Figure 84: The spreadsheet we will use for our chart exercises.

Let us get started on our first chart! We need to make a bar chart".

- 1. Make sure one of the cells in the table is the active cell. Alternatively you can select the whole table.
- 2. Choose the Insert Tab in the Ribbon.
- 3. Click on the <u>Bar</u> button
- 4. Choose chart type top left (see Figure 85)

Home	Inse	t	PageLa	yout	Formula	as	Data	Review	View	Acrob	at
ip Shape	s Smar	tArt	Column	Line	Pie *	Bar	Area	Scatter	Other Charts *	Q Hyperlink	A Text Box
lustrations					(2-D E	Bar			Links	
f _x C	512	2	D	Е						I	
						<u>с</u> а 3-	lustered Compare	Bar e values ac	ross cate	gories	
Oil in Lite	ers 425	EL ir	n kWh 480			Use it when the values on the chart					
	410 378		486 370			cy	category	text is ver	y long.		
	198		388								
	68		370			Cone	- C				
	61 62		328 379								
	73		398			Pre 2					
	250		402			ryia					
	410		512	-							
						db 4	All Chart	Types			

Figure 85: Choose your first chart.

Within a few seconds the miracle will happen. If you have followed my instructions correctly, you already have a neat chart ready for use. The graph has a horizontal axis with months and a series of bars in two different colours that show the oil and electricity consumption respectively.

C.) 🖬 🤊 -	(°I +) Ŧ	Book	1 [Compatibility	Mode] - N	licrosoft Excel		Chart Tool	s					
-	Home	Insert	Page Layout	Formulas I	Data R	eview View	Acrobat	Design	Layout	Format			0 -	
Cha Char	inge Save	As Switc Row/Col	h Select umn Data				ւտ	հհ			al I	6.6		Move Chart
	type	6	e l	Chart	Layouts				Chart	styles			10	ocation
	Chart I	• 0	Jx						-	-		_	-	_
	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	K	L	M	1
1														
2			off the title of	et la landa										
3			Oil in Liters	EL IN KWN										
4		January	42	5 480		60								
6		March	41	0 480 0 270		50	0				-			
7		Anril	19	8 388		40					11			
8		May	6	6 365		40			1.1					
9		June	6	8 370		30	0 +							
10		July	6	1 328							Oil in Li	iters :		
11		August	6	2 379		: 20	•				EL in k	Wh		
12		September	7.	3 398		10	0 +							
13		Oktober	11	2 402										
14		November	25	0 465										
15		December	41	0 512			uary uary	CT APTH MAY	une July cu	a niber tober nit	er niber			
16			T			· ·	Par Bepr. Mr.		Aucer	Per Oktower	ecer			
17									4					
18														
19														

Figure 86: Your first bar chart. Notice the Ribbon has changed.

Unless you clicked on an empty cell in the spreadsheet, the chart will now be selected. If not, click one time with the mouse on the chart.

When a chart is selected, certain things happen. The table with data will be highlighted, so you can see which data are included in the chart. You can change the data to be included by pulling with the mouse at the corners of the selection.

7.1.1 Charting Tools and Language Confusion

When the chart is selected, some Tabs will be added to the band called "Charting Tools". The Charting Tools contain all the functions you can use on your charts. The tools are organised into three Tabs called <u>Design</u>, <u>Layout</u> and <u>Format</u>.

The Ribbon is a brand new way to use charts, and once you get used to it, it is a definite improvement on the endless number of dialog boxes in the older versions.

The <u>Design</u> Tab contains the basic functions to adapt the structure of the chart. Think of design as being about the basic structure without the colours, numbers formats, etc. It could be about what type of chart you want to use, the data to be included and how they should be interpreted. It can therefore be a little confusing that in the Design Tab we can select what colour Styles to match with the colour theme you have set for the spreadsheet.

The <u>Layout</u> Tab contains functions to manage the various elements of a chart. A chart can, for example, include a title, an explanation for the different column colours, gridlines, which helps make the chart easier to read, layout, etc. Thus layout is about the placement of the different elements that you can "stick" on a chart.

The <u>Format</u> Tab contains functions relating to the aesthetic part of the task, such as colouring, font, number formats etc.

7.1.2 Terminology – What does it mean?

There is some terminology and words and concepts you should know before you start working with charts. Figure 87 shows the chart from our exercise, with a few extra features added.



Figure 87: The most important elements in a chart.



Everything can be adjusted in the chart. If you right-click an item a menu pops up where you can do different things. One detail is the data series. If you just right-click on a pillar in the data series, the changes you make affect the entire data series. However, if you click twice with the left mouse button on a pillar and then right-click, the changes will affect only the column you clicked.

7.1.3 Change of Scale

By default, Excel will adjust the scale of value axis. But sometimes it can be advantageous to create a fixed scale. This is especially true if you have two charts side by side, which must be comparable. If you make permanent scales on both charts, they are easy to compare. Another example is if you have a percent scale. Excel has a tendency to let it go up to 120%, although you might only want it to go to 100%.

- 1. Click with the right mouse button on one of the figures on the value axis.
- 2. A menu appears, and you must click on Format axis.

Format Axis	? ×
Axis Options	Axis Options
Number	Minimum: 💿 Auto O Eixed 0,0
Fill	Maximum: 💿 Auto O Fixed 600,0
Line Color	Major unit: Auto C Fixed 100,0
Line Style	Minor unit: Auto C Fixed 20,0
Shadow	Values in reverse order
3-D Format	Logarithmic scale Base: 10
Alignment	Display units: None
	Major tick mark type: Outside
	Minor tick mark type: None 💌
	Axis labels: Next to Axis 💌
	Horizontal axis crosses: Aut <u>o</u> matic
	C Axis valu <u>e</u> : 0,0
	O Maximum axis value
	Close

Figure 88: Axis Settings.

The dialog box "Format Axis" will open, and here you can set a lot of different things. You can include adjustable scale, colour and number formats, among other things.

In the left side of the box the settings are saved under different categories.

3. Ensure the category Axis Settings is chosen.

Here you can set the scale on the axis. In this case we will just change how high the scale goes.

- 4. At "Maximum" select <u>Static</u> instead of <u>Automatic</u>.
- 5. You can now type in the field to the right, and there you must type 400.
- 6. Click <u>Close</u>.

Your chart has now changed. The scale was smaller, and your columns became taller as a result. Some of them are so tall that they grow out of the chart



Figure 89: The chart with a different scale.

This is the risk of having a fixed scale, so you should think carefully before you choose this option.

7. We will also use the chart in the next exercises. So, right-click the value axis again, click on Format Axis and change the scale to Automatic again.

Two Value Axes Each with its Own Scale

In some cases it might be a good idea to have two different value axes. In our diagram we show the oil and electricity consumption in the same chart, and both datasets use the same value axis. The figures for oil and electricity are rather close to each other, so in our chart it is not a problem, but one is not always so lucky

In many apartments heat consumption is calculated by counters located on the radiators. Many know this system as counting "units", and you might only use 50 units a month instead of 300 litres of oil.

In our chart it would cause problems, since the columns of heat would be very short and difficult to compare month for month.

1. For the next exercise, I ask you to change the data form, so it will look like Figure 92. The title "Oil in Litres" must be changed to "Heat Units", and the figures must also be changed. The chart adapts automatically.

We need a new axis for the heat units, since the columns are a little too short to look proper.

- 2. Click on one of the value columns.
- 3. In the Ribbon, choose the <u>Layout</u> Tab, then click on the <u>Format Selection</u> button, located to the far left on the Ribbon.



Figure 90: The Format Selection button.



Find out more and apply online.

Visit accenture.com/bootcamp

Consulting • Technology • Outsourcing



This gives you the option to change all kinds of setting for the "Heat Units" data series.

Format Data Series		<u>?</u> ×
Format Data Series	Series Options Series Overlap Separated O% Gap Width No Gap IS0% Plot Series On Plot Series On Primary Axis Secondary Axis	Overlapped
		Close

Figure 91: Series Settings.

You can experiment with fill colour, border colour and shadows when we are done with the exercise.

- 4. Ensure <u>Series Settings</u> is selected in the left side of the box.
- 5. Under "Plot series on", select Secondary Axis.
- 6. Click on <u>Close</u>.



Figure 92: The chart with a secondary axis.

Now the chart looks like the chart in Figure 92 There is an additional scale on the right side, but there are also some less fortunate things. The scale of heat units is correct, but Excel has decided that the blue bars now should be located on top of the red bars. This means that there are some red bars that you cannot see because they are shorter than the blue ones! This was *not* what we asked for. All we wanted was an extra axis.

Things like that happen occasionally in even the best programs. We have actually found an error in Excel! As I prepared this exercise, I tried various tricks to rectify the error, but Excel insists that, when you have two value axes, the columns stand on top of each other.

But where there is a will there is a way. Sometimes you have to be creative and find an alternative solution. We will therefore turn the chart into a "line chart" in the next section!

7.2 Line Charts

Line charts works exactly like bar charts, but instead of pillars to visualize values Excel creates points connected by lines.

We continue where we left off in the last exercise. The exercise went wrong because we found an error in Excel. Therefore we will begin this section by turning a bar chart into a line chart.

- 1. Click somewhere on the chart.
- 2. Choose the Layout Tab in the Ribbon.
- 3. Furthest to the left in the Ribbon there is a grouping of buttons called "Current Selection". The top button is actually a "scroll box" where you can choose between different things. You must ensure that it shows "Chart Area". If it does not, click the small arrow to the right and select <u>Chart Area</u> on the list.

This little exercise ensured that you have selected the whole chart and not just a data series, an axis or a single bar. When we change the chart type for the entire chart, the entire chart must be selected. Later, we will try to make a combined chart.

- 4. Choose the <u>Design</u> Tab in the Ribbon.
- 5. Click on the Change Chart Type to the far left in the Ribbon.
- 6. Choose the Line category in the left side of the box that opens up.
- 7. In the right side of the box, click on the first chart in the row beneath the headline "Line" (see Figure 93).
- 8. Click on <u>OK</u>.



Figure 93: The line charts are located in the Line category.

You have now transformed the entire chart into a line chart. The disadvantage is that the settings are now reset again, so you no longer have a secondary axis. If you like, you can put a secondary axis in again. It should look like this:



I can shape the future. Every day.

The E.ON graduate program requires my energy and creative input. In exchange I get to work with up-to-date technologies in a team that supports my professional development. What about you?

Your energy shapes the future.

www.eon-career.com





Figure 94: line chart with two axes.

7.3 Charts with both Columns and Lines

You are not limited to either bar charts or line diagrams. In Excel, you can actually both have your cake and eat it!

You can select a chart type for each data series. However, that only makes sense when the chart types are compatible. It makes no sense to combine a line chart with a pie chart, as we shall see later.

We will now change the line chart back to a column chart.

- 1. Click on a place in the line for electricity consumption.
- 2. In the Ribbon, Click the Design Tab.
- 3. To the left in the ribbon, click the <u>Change Chart Type</u> button.
- 4. In the box that opens, choose <u>Column</u> in the Category list to the left.
- 5. Now click on the first column chart in the right side.

When you select a single data series, it will be the only data series that is turned into another chart type.



Figure 95: Combine line and bar chart.

In the next section, we will work with some other chart types. If you like, you can proceed with bar and line charts and find out how to add colour and effects.

7.4 Circle Charts

Circle charts, also called pie charts, are useful to describe the size of different values in relation to each other. Unlike bar and line charts, pie charts are not suitable for describing your electricity consumption over time.

To perform the next exercise you must create a spreadsheet in the same way as in Figure 96. The spreadsheet is a simplified monthly budget for a family's recurrent expenditures.

	C8	→ (*) <i>f</i> _x Kr 3	300,00
	А	В	С
1			
2			
3			Monthly expenses
4		Home loans	Kr 10.000,00
5		Carloans	kr 3.000,00
6		Heat end el	Kr 1.200.,00
7		Insurance	Kr 1.500,00
8		Telephone and internet	Kr 300,00
9			

Figure 96: Starting point of the exercise.

In a pie chart, we can illustrate what the costs are compared to each other.

When the spreadsheet is ready, you must activate one of the cells in the table.

- 1. Click on the Insert Tab in the Ribon.
- 2. Click on the <u>Circle</u> Tab in the Ribbon.



Figure 97: The Circle Tab.

3. Click on the 2-D circle top left in the menu that appears.

After a brief moment, you have a circle chart where the various items in the budget have become pieces in a "pie".



Figure 98: A circle chart.

As you can probably see, it is a good visual way to illustrate where the money goes. What you cannot see is how much money it is. We might also like to add some percentages.





Figure 99: The Circle chart with data labels.

- 4. Ensure the chart is selected.
- 5. In the ribbon, choose the <u>Layout</u> Tab.
- 6. On the Tab there is a group of buttons called "Labels". Click on the Data Labels button.
- 7. A menu appears where you must click on the menu item called Outside.

Now the amounts are plotted in the chart, but it will also be very illustrative to put some percentages on them. Some people like pies, while others like numbers better.

- 8. Right-click on one of the data labels, for instance the one that says "Kr. 10.000,00".
- 9. In the menu that appears, choose Format Data Labels.

A box will open where you can set everything concerning the data labels. Like so many other boxes in Excel, the options are organised in categories, which you can choose from in the left side of the box.



Figure 100: Format data labels.

- 10. Ensure the category Label Settings has been chosen.
- 11. Under the header "Label Contains", tick Percentage and leave the others as they are.
- 12. Click on Close.

Now you have both amounts and percentages in the chart, which gives a lot of inormation about our household budget .



Figure 101: Data labels with percentages.

Now I suggest that you experiment a little with your circle chart. Try changing chart type to a 3D pie chart. 3D circle charts look good, and unlike bar and curve charts the beautiful effect does not affect readability in a circle chart.

7.5 Scatter Charts

Scatter charts are also called "X-Y charts. If you are a mathematician, you have probably already figured out what an X-Y chart does; it shows values of Y as a function of X. Or put another way, you can show that some values are dependent on others.

To be fair, you can also do that in a bar or line chart, but the scatter chart is different. In the bar and line charts, the horizontal axis is not a scale, but a "category axis". It represents fixed points present in the data table. Each row of the data table corresponds to a point on the horizontal axis of the chart. In the scatter chart, the axis scales in relation to the values appearing in the data table, and the values in the data table may not even be ordered. On the downside, you cannot use values such as January, February, etc. in a scatter chart. All values must be numbers.

If your values on the horizontal axis are in sorted order and have the same interval such as 10, 20, 30, 40, etc. you can use an ordinary line chart. But with the scatter chart, the horizontal axis can also assume negative values.

The scatter chart is therefore suitable for displaying results of measurements where, for instance, you measure the density of a material in relation to temperature. You may also to some extent use scatter charts to show graphs for mathematical functions.

There are features in Excel to show graphs of a mathematical expression, but by creating a table with a lot of values for x, and a lot of values for f(x) you can make such a graph nonetheless.

7.5.1 Results of Measurements

In this example, I have made some samples of our consumption of fuel oil for heating the house in relation to diurnal temperature outside. The samples are carried out on some random day during the autumn of 2007. I have set a table with my measurements and would like to visualise the results with a scatter chart. I want to show how much oil we use in relation to outside temperature. The horizontal axis should be the temperature, and the vertical axis should be oil consumption in litres.



Engineer your Future at DTU

MSc in Engineering programs

All of DTU 26 English-taught MSc programs consist of research-based courses taught by faculty members performing research at the highest international levels.

In 2008, the Leiden Ranking rated DTU number 5 among Europe's 100 technical universities, and THES ranked DTU number 20 globally and number 3 in Europe measured by scientific impact in engineering.

A study by iGraduate shows that more than 90 pct. International Students will recommend DTU.

Click here vww.dtu.dl 1. Make a spreadsheet as shown in Figure 102.

	D13	, (0	<i>f</i> x 9,6	
	А	В	С	D
1				
2				
3				
4		Date	Temperature	oil consumption
5		01-01-2007	8,4	7,3
6		12-01-2007	7,3	7,2
7		21-01-2007	7,4	7,3
8		02-11-2007	5,1	8,1
9		16-11-2007	6,2	10
10		30-11-2007	4,3	10,7
11		07-12-2007	2,1	10,8
12		24-12-2007	3,2	9,9
13		31-12-2007	4,4	9,6
1.4				

Figure 102: The starting point of the exercise.

- 2. Select cell region C3:D12. The dates are not relevant in this chart.
- 3. Click on the <u>Insert</u> Tab in the Ribbon.
- 4. Click on the Scatter Chart button
- 5. In the menu that appears, choose the chart type top left (see Figure 103).



Figure 103 the Scatter Chart button.

We now have a scatter chart with a temperature scale at the bottom and the corresponding oil consumption plotted into the graph as points.

Here you can really see the difference between line charts and section charts, since measurements in the data table have not been arranged according to temperature. Excel has done that for us in the chart.

7.5.2 Graphic Representation of Mathematical Expressions

As previously mentioned, you can also use the scatter chart to display graphical representations of mathematical expressions. Excel is not really designed for this and there are other programs better suited for this task.

But for lack of better you can still use Excel.

In our example we will try to show a graph of a second quadratic polynomial, which is a nice parabola. I

The expression we want to display is:

 $f(x) = 3x^2 + 2x - 3$

We will try to show the graph for x-values between -7 and +7.

1. Start by creating a spreadsheet as shown in Figure 104.

	C4	- (0	f_{x}	
	A	В	С	D
1				
2				
3		х	f(x)	
4		-7		
5		-6		
6		-5		
7		-4		
8		-3		
9		-2		
10		-1		
11		0		
12		1		
13		2		
14		3		
15		4		
16		5		
17		6		
18		7		
19				

Figure 104: The starting point for the exercise.

- 2. In cell C4, write the formula $=3*B4^2+2*B4-3$, and press ENTER.
- 3. Copy cell C4 to cell region C4:C18.

Now we have a table with two columns. One column has the X-values and the other has the function of the X-values. Now we can create a scatter chart, but this time we choose a chart where the points are connected.

- 4. Activate one of the cells in the table.
- 5. In the ribbon, choose the <u>Insert</u> Tab.
- 6. Click on the Scatter Chart button and choose the chart type top right.

Now we have our parabola.





Excel has several types of charts, and there are also three-dimensional versions of the chart types we have worked with here. I encourage you to experiment with the different types of chart. Not all possibilities are examined in this book, but you are now aware of everything you need to continue on your own.



7.6 Chart Sheet

If you do not want the diagram inside the spreadsheet, you can place it in a separate chart sheet. It will then get its own sheet tab at the bottom of the screen.

- 1. Create a chart in a spreadsheet or use one from a previous exercise.
- 2. Right-click on the chart and click on the menu item Move Chart
- 3. In the window that opens. Select <u>New Sheet</u> and name it. In Figure 106, I call the new sheet "Parabola".
- 4. Click <u>OK</u>.

Move Chart		-	? 🛛
Choose where	you want the char	t to be placed: —	
	⊙ New <u>s</u> heet:	Chart1	
	O Object in:	Sheet10	~
			OK Cancel

Figure 106: Move Chart.

The chart disappears from the original spreadsheet, and a new sheet tab has appeared, which in my case is called "parabola".

7.7 Viewing and Printing

Viewing and printing is perhaps not so important compared to learning how to do spreadsheets, but when you start working more seriously with it, you will discover that there are some possibilities that are good to know about.

7.7.1 Printing

Of course, you can print your spreadsheets, but often you will find that it requires a little adjustment and alignment before you get a satisfactory result. It is not something that should cost you sleep at night, because when you have learned a few tricks, it is not a problem.

-	Hor	ne In	sert	Page Lay	out F	ormulas	Data	Revie	w Vie	w Acro	bat			0	
F	× F	Calibri	*	11 -	= =		Gener	al 👻	A	¦ansert ∗	Σ.	AT A	a		
4		BI	U	A A	EE	■ 雨・	. 💷 -	% ,		Pelete	- 🗔 -	ZI G			
Pa	ste 🦼		Br A	-		20-	+.0 .0	0	Styles	Eormat		Sort & Fin	d &		
in	hoard Di		Font		Aligne	ment D	Num	bar Di		Calle	~	Filter * Sele	ect *		
ιþ	board G		FOIL		Alight	nent .	* Trenu	ber a	IL II	Cells		calang			
	B2	2	+ (0	6.	Ĵ×										
	A Collered	В	C	D	E	F	G	H	1	J	K	L	M	N	0
	Collum 1	January	rebruary	march	мрпі	мај	Juni	July	August	September	Uktober	November	December		
	2														
	3														
	4														
	5														
_	6														
	(
-	9														
-	10														
-	11														
	12														
	13														
	14														
	15														
	16														
_	1/				_										
	10														
10	20														
	21														
	22														
	23														
	24														
	25														
	26														
	27														
	28														
10	23														
	31														
	- 51								1						
2															
1	> H	Sheet1	6 / Shee	et6 🖌 Si	heet17	Sheet7	Sheet	B / Chai	rt1 / She	261 4		111			Þ

Figure 107: A large table.

In Figure 1017 there is an example of a table that takes up a lot of space. If you like, you can create a similar table, so you can practice yourself. Content is not so important as long as you have roughly the same number of rows and columns as in the example.

7.7.2 Print Preview

I always use the "Print Preview" function before I print. "Print Preview" shows what the printout will look like when it is sent to the printer.

1. Click on the Office Button, point to the menu item Print, then click on Print Preview.



Figure 108: The Print Preview function.

Now you will see an image of how the print will look with the current settings.

Careers for heavyweights

You've got a good brain. milkround.com will make the most of it.

milkround.com is dedicated to finding graduates careers in the industries they want to work in.

Register now and weigh up the best possible start to your career.

Please click the advert

Recruitment of the highest degree

In our example in Figure 109, it is clear that the transcript is not optimal. The table in the spreadsheet has 13 columns, but only seven of them are displayed. If you scroll down with your mouse, you get to page 2 where the rest of the table is displayed.

□ 17 · (1 ·) =	Book2 [Compatibility Mo	de] - Microsoft Excel	
Print Preview			
Page Zoom Show Margins Close Previous Page	Print iew		
200m Preview			
Collum 1 January Februar	y March April Maj	Juni July	
1			
2			
6			
7			
8			
9			
10			
11			
12			
14			
15			
16			
17			
18			
19			
20			
22			
23			
24			
25			
26			
27			
27			

Figure 109: The "Print Preview" window, where you can see that the table does not fit on one page. In the bottom left corner you can see that the printout takes up two pages.

7.7.3 Page Setup

We need to change some settings. Fortunately, you can adjust a lot of different things. For instance, you can scale down. The content of the spreadsheet must be scaled down so that it fits on one page. You can also adjust the margins and add headers and footers, which are text elements that appear at the top and bottom of each page of the transcript.

Finally, you can also set the number of rows and columns to be repeated on all pages. It is especially helpful if you need to print a table with many rows, since you can view the column headers on all pages of the transcript.

2. In the Ribbon, click on the Page Setup button.

The "Page Setup" window opens and from here you can control the various options.

Page Setup
Page Margins Header/Footer Sheet
Orientation Orientation Original Origin
Scaling Adjust to: 100 % normal size Fit to: 1 page(s) wide by 1 tall
Paper size: A4
First page number: Auto
Options
OK Cancel

Figure 110: The "Page" Tab.

The window is divided into four different tabs called "Page", "Margins", "Header / Footer" and "Sheet".

In the "Page" Tab you can choose the orientation, ie. choose between portrait and landscape paper format. You can also select the scaling of the content. The default scaling is 100%, but you can adjust it up and down manually until you get an outcome that suits you.

3. In this exercise, let Excel find an appropriate scaling by simply indicating that Excel must adapt the content in width and height to a specified number of pages in landscape format. In our case we will probably get a suitable result by selecting one page wide by one page in height landscape format.



Figure 111: Visual setting of margins.

R) and wy	- Book3 [Compatibility Mode] - Microsoft Excel	>
Print P	review	
Print Page Setup Print	Zoom Alex Page Show Margins Zoom Preview	
1	Collum 3 January February March April Maj Juni ady	
	1	
	2	
	5	
	7	
	3	
	9	
	10	
	11	
	13	
	14	
	15	
	16	
	17	
	30	
	19	_
	21	
	22	
	23	
	24	
	x	

Figure 112: Our table with settings as shown in Figure 110.

It is not always enough to scale the pages to get an appropriate result. Sometimes you need to precisely define where the page breaks should be. You will learn that in the next section on "viewing".



The "Margins" Tab in the "Page Setup" window is . Of course you can set how big the margins should be in centimetres. This can also be done in another way. If you close the window "Page Setup" and set a marker at the display margins on the tape, you can adjust the margins visually using the mouse. I think this is easier to work with.

The "Header / Footer" Tab allows you to display a fixed text at the top and bottom of each page of the transcript. This text could be company name, author, etc. But you can also add some text fields which automatically show the date, page number and filename.

The "Sheet" Tab is used to set what must be printed. You do not always want to print everything, and it may be necessary to repeat some rows or columns on all pages. Most settings in this Tab are not available if you opened the window "Page Setup" from within "Print Preview"



Figure 113: The Printout button.

- 4. Therefore, you must close "Print Preview".
- 5. To get into "Page setup" again, click the <u>Page Layout</u> Tab in the Ribbon, then click the <u>Print Titles</u> button. It is a bit of a long way to go, but Excel can also be like that sometimes.
- 6. You can now choose the <u>Sheet</u> Tab again, if you have not already done so.
- 7. In Figure 114 I have set Excel to repeat number 1 and column A. This of course does not matter if I have already chosen that Excel should adjust everything to one page, but it was only meant as an illustration, and we will need it later for an exercise in the Section "View" below.
| Page Setup | 2 1 1 50 | ?× | | | | | |
|---|----------------|-----------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Page Margins Heade | r/Footer Sheet | | | | | | |
| Print area: The second | | | | | | | |
| Rows to repeat at top: \$1:\$1 | | | | | | | |
| Columns to repeat at left: \$A:\$A | | | | | | | |
| Print Gridlines Gridlines Black and white Cell grrors as: Draft guality Row and column headings Page order Oyer, then down | | | | | | | |
| | <u>Print</u> F | Print Preview Options | | | | | |
| | | OK Cancel | | | | | |

Figure 114: Row 1 and column A are repeated on all pages with this setting.

8. Click <u>OK</u>.

7.8 Viewing

So far, our exercises have taken place in "Normal View". This is the standard way to display spreadsheets, and it is nicer when you work in the spreadsheet. But there are a few other useful views you can use before you print your sheet.

If you have a large spreadsheet you need to print, the result may well be somewhat disappointing because spreadsheets tend to spread out over several pages. In the section on printing, you learned that you can scale the printout to fit into a specific number of pages, but you also have the opportunity to control exactly where the page breaks should be.

The display buttons are located at the bottom right on the screen. You can get to he same features by clicking on the <u>View</u> Tab in the Ribbon, but the display buttons at the bottom are always visible, allowing you can save a mouse click.

The display buttons consist of three buttons and a "zoom slider". The "zoom slider" works by clicking the mouse and dragging to the right or left to zoom in and out respectively. I prefer instead to hold down the CTRL key on the keyboard while I scroll up or down with the scroll wheel on the mouse. It is a much easier way to zoom in and out, in my opinion, and this method can also be used in many Windows programs.



Figure 115: The display buttons.

The other three view buttons switch between Normal, Page Layout and Show Page Breaks.

We are already familiar with <u>Normal</u>, since it is the view we have been using in all our exercises so far. This is the best view when you just have to work with the spreadsheet without caring about the print layout.

<u>Page Layout</u> shows something similar to the result if you print out the spreadsheet. You also get that if you choose <u>Print Preview</u> from the Office Button, but in page layout view, you can still work in the spreadsheet. However, the view is not nearly as accurate as <u>Print Preview</u>.

<u>Show Page Breaks</u> are the most useful alternative view, since it also adds an important functionality. Here you can see and adjust what should and should not be printed. You can insert and rearrange page breaks and exclude certain areas from being printed.





7.9 Adjust Print Range

C) 🖬 🤊 - (°' -) Ŧ				Book2 (versi	on 1) [Autos	saved] [Con	opatibility Mo	ode] - Microsof	t Excel				- 0	×
	Get Genuine Office	Home	Insert F	Page Layout	Formulas	Data P	Review V	iew Acrob	at					0 - 0	×
1	Calibri	- 11 - A			= Wrap	Text	General				🖓 Insert 🔹	E · AT	a	J.	
PM	B Z T		A .			b Carden a	100 × 44		Conditional F	ormat Cell	3* Delete *	Sort a	Find a	This copy of Offi	
	4		<u>-</u>			ra cene ·	-1. 14	•	Formatting * as	Table - Styles -	Format *	2* Filter*	Select *	is not genuine	
Cipe	oard 0 Fo	ont		Alig	nment		Foum	ber v	20	165	Cells	Editin	2	Click here to learn	m
	123 •	, je													•
4	A B	C	D	Annil	F	G	H	I	Cantambar	K	L	M	N	0	8
2	1	February	March	April	maj	Juni	July	August	september	OWODEL	November	December			
3	2	-						-							
4	3														
5	4														
6	5														
7	6														
8	7	_						-							
9	8	-	_												
10	9		_												
11	10	-						+							
12	11														
14	13							-							
15	14	_						-							
16	15		201	20	1			-		0000	0				
17	16		a	u c					Г	aye	2				
18	17			0											
19	18														
20	19														
21	20														
22	21														
23	22		_					+							
29	25							+							
20	24	-	-					-							
27	26	-	-					-							
28	27	-						-	-						
29	28														
30	29														
31	30														
32	31														
33															
34															Ч
35															
37															
14 4	H / Sheet16 / She	ető / Sheet	t17 / Shee	t7 / Sheet8 ;	/Chart1 / S	sheet10 5	sheet 11 🦯	2/					-)	T
Read	y Recovered											III 🛄 10	rs 😑 –) .:

Figure 116: The view Show Page Break.

1. Clik on the <u>Show Page Break</u> button to display the same screen as in Figure 116.

In the example in Figure 116, I have changed the page setup from the previous exercise, so the scaling is 100% again. Page layout is still landscape format. The repetition of the first row and column has also been disabled.

Welcome to Page Break Preview 🛛 🛛 🔀
You can adjust where the page breaks are by clicking and dragging them with your mouse.
Do not show this dialog again.
ОК

The table is surrounded by a thick blue border, which defines "printable area". Only those cells that are in the frame will be printed. You can, by pointing to the frame with your mouse and holding the left mouse button, move the frame. That way you can also exclude some of the table for printing, if that is what you want. You can also have several separate areas in the spreadsheet as a part of the print area. To illustrate this, it requires that our example be extended with a couple of extra tables.

2. Click on the view button <u>Normal</u>, and add a few tables like the ones shown in Figure 117. Also add some text in some other cells that you do not want printed.

C .,		9 - (1 -	Ŧ			E	300k2 (ver	sion 1) [Au	tosaved]	[Compatibilit	y Mode] - I	Microsoft Exc	el					_ = ×
	Get	Genuine Off	ice Ho	me Inse	ert Page	e Layout	Formulas	Data	Review	View	Acrobat							🔞 _ 🖛 x
						-	1					8 892		a•■ Insert	- Σ-	A a	6	JL
		Century So	hool • 11	* А л			- Wra	ip Text	Gene	al		s 📝	<u></u>	Pelete		Zſ	10	22
Pas	te 🧹	BI	I -) 🖽 -)	🏠 - 🛕	╸		🗉 🔤 Mer	ge & Center	· 🗐 ·	% ,	.00 Condi	tional Forma tting = as Table	t Cell	Forma	t - 2-	Sort & Fin Filter T Sel	id & This ect ≠ is	copy of Office
Clipb	oard 🖻		Font		5	Alig	nment		5	Number	G	Styles	. sques	Cells	-	Editing	Click I	here to learn m
	L41		- (0	fx														×
	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J.	K	L.	м	N	0	P	Q	R
1 0	ollum 1	January	February	March	April	Maj	Juni	July	August	September	Oktober	November	December		Monday	Tuesday	Vensday	
2		1																
3		2																
5		4																
6		5																
7		5																
8		2													Monday	Tuesday	Veneday	
10		9													monuay	Tuesday	rensuay	
11	1	0																
12	1	1																
14	1	2																
15	1	4																
16	1	5																
17	1	5												-				
18	1	2																
20	1	9												-				
21	2	0																=
22	2	1																
23	2	2																
25	2	4												-				
26	2	5																
27	2	5												-				
28	2	2													Fill			
30	2	9													as			
31	3	0													Fill			
32	3	1													dg			
34															g			
35															j			
36															ghj			
37															kj			
39																		
40																		
41																		
42																		
43	N NI 2	Charabal	Charabé	Charakt 7	(Charak7	Charatto	Chauth	Charab10	Chartel	8 7							1	×
14 4	- 11	Srieet16	sneetti "	-sneet17	∠ sneet7	∠ sneet8 ∠		SUBBLID	_sneet1	L (~~)		4	_				0 0	

Figure 117: Expansion with a few extra tables and a cell area that we do not want printed.

3. Change to Show Page Breaks again.

You can still see that the original table is inside the white area, which means that it will be printed. But the new tables are outside the printable area and will therefore not be printed

If you have several different areas in the same spreadsheet that you want printed, you can hold down the CTRL key on your keyboard while you select the different areas with the mouse. When you are finished selecting fields, click the right mouse button on one of the areas and select the menu item Set Print Area:

- 4. Hold down the CTRL key while you select all three tables with the mouse. Do not select that which you do not want to print.
- 5. Right-click on any of the highlighted areas and click the menu item Set Print Area.



We now have a "composite print area" and the spreadsheet will look like Figure 118.

Figure 118: Page Breaks View with the new tables in the grey area.

Composite printing areas are an advantage if you only want certain fields written out, for example some nice tables and charts. You can have some intermediate calculations in the spreadsheet that you do not want in print.

7.9.1 Managing Page Breaks

In our exercise, there is an automatic page break down through the multiplication table. It is signified by a dotted blue line. Excel decides where the automatic page breaks should be, and your spreadsheet might show something else. It depends on the cell heights and column widths, but it also depends on your printer and its configuration.

To gain more control over where the page breaks are, you can insert permanent page breaks. Fixed page breaks will not move, and if you put them in the right places, you can avoid unfortunate automatic page breaks.

Insertion of fixed page breaks is always on the left and above the cell which is active. Our multiplication table in the example would obviously spread out over two pages. In my spreadsheet the table was divided by an automatic page break between the columns for October and November. I would like the shift to be between June and July, so I make H1 the active cell.

- 1. In your spreadsheet, activate the cell, where it says "July".
- 2. Make sure the <u>Page Layout</u> Tab in the Ribbon is selected, and click on the <u>Shift</u> button.
- 3. In the menu that appears, click on <u>Insert Page Break</u>.



Figure 119: The Shift button.

Now there are no automatic page breaks, and there will not be any unless you make the sheet bigger.

6) - C	• •	T	Book3	[Compatib	ility Mode] -	Microsoft Ex	cel	A such as	Table Tool:	5	-	
A. Then	Colors * A Fonts * Les O Effects * Themes	Margins Orie	ntation Size	Print B Area *	reaks Backg	round Print Titles	Width:	Automatic * Automatic * 100% \$ to Fit	Gridlines View Print Sheet O	Headings View Print ptions	Bring to Send to Selection Front * Back * Pane Arrang	Align Group Rotate	
	H1	• (•	<i>f</i> ∗ July										×
1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	A. B. International Science 2014	Page	April - Ma	G G Juni a		Pa	age 4			O P Monti Monti fill tes 30 Mg Mg Mg Mg Mg Mg Mg	 Page 1 Tursda 2 Vensda 1 Page 2 	T U I	

Figure 120: Now the page breaks are fixed.

8. Working with Multiple Spreadsheets

Earlier in the book, I mentioned that you may have multiple spreadsheets in the same workbook, and that you can use data from other spreadsheets in your formulas. The formulas can refer to other sheet tabs by adding the sheet name to the cell reference. With a further addition you may even refer to cells in completely different workbooks!

I know a medium sized company, which does its entire budget in spreadsheets. When it is completely finished, it is loaded into their finance system. The advantage is that it is easier to juggle with numbers in spreadsheets than in a large ERP system. The company believe themselves that they make more precise and thorough budgets in this way. Each department as a starting point make their own budget in a spreadsheet template developed by the Finance Department. Naming and placement of worksheets/workbooks has been agreed in advance.

Once all departments have reported that their respective sub-budgets are finished, the finance department opens a special spreadsheet that pulls data from all sub-budgets and transform them into a format that can be loaded into the finance system.

This is a procedure that works, but it requires great discipline. All spreadsheet files must be named correctly and placed in the right folder on the corporate network.



8.1 Working with Sheet Tabs

If you make a large spreadsheet with many contexts, it can be very confusing if you have it all in a single spreadsheet. We therefore use a "workbook" with sheet tabs, each sheet tab being a spreadsheet itself. As we have seen, a sheet tab can also include a sheet where you have a chart instead of a spreadsheet.

- 1. Start a new spreadsheet.
- 2. Right-click on "Sheet1" at the bottom of the screen and click on <u>Rename</u>.
- 3. Type Input and press ENTER.



Figure 121: Rename sheet tabs.

You have now re-named Sheet1, so it reads "Input" instead. It could also have been called "Grandma" if it was what you wanted.

- 4. Type 2 in cell B2.
- 5. Click on the sheet tab <u>Sheet2</u>.
- 6. Type 3 in cell B2.

We will now type a simple formula in Sheet2 that adds together the contents of the two cells.

- 7. In cell B3 in Sheet2, type an = sign to start a new formula. Do not press the ENTER key.
- 8. Click on the sheet tab <u>Input</u>.
- 9. Click on cell B2 (the one with the number 2 in it).
- 10. Press the + key on the keyboard.
- 11. Click on the sheet tab Sheet2.
- 12. Click on cell B2 and press the ENTER key.

The result of the formula is 5, which you probably had figured out from the start. What is more interesting is the actual formula. If you make cell B3 in Sheet2 the active cell, you can see in the formula bar that the formula is:

"=Input!B2+'Ark2'!B2"

So, you put the sheet name first, write an exclamation mark and then the ordinary cell reference. If you look closely at the two references, you may detect a slight difference. "Sheet2" is surrounded by single quotation marks, but "Input" is not. It is because there is a number "2" in the sheet name. If there are numbers or spaces in the sheet name, they should always be surrounded by single quotation marks. The name "Input" has neither and thus gets no quotation marks.

You can leave this workbook open because we are going to need it for the next exercise.

8.2 Retrieve Data from Other Workbooks

As mentioned, you can retrieve data from other workbooks (Excel files). It takes only a reference to the file in the cell reference.

- 1. Save the current worksheet in the folder "My Documents". Call the file "test.xlsx".
- 2. Start a new spreadsheet, but leave test.xlsx open.

Now we will make the same calculation as in the previous exercise, but we make the calculation in the new workbook.

It does not matter what sheets you use in the new workbook. In this exercise, the important thing is the references to test.xlsx.

- 3. In cell B2, type an equal sign to start a formula.
- 4. In the Ribbon, select the <u>View</u> Tab and click on the <u>Shift Window</u> button.
- 5. In the menu that appears, choose the menu item <u>test.xlsx</u>.

You are now back in the old spreadsheet.

- 6. Click on the sheet tab <u>Input</u>.
- 7. Click on cell B2.
- 8. Press the + key on the keyboard.
- 9. Click on the sheet tab <u>Sheet2</u>.
- 10. Click on cell B2
- 11. Press the ENTER key.

Now you are back in the new spreadsheet again, and the formula should give the result 5 again. But again, you have to look at what is in the formula. It probably says:

=[test.xlsx]Input!\$B\$2+[test.xlsx]Ark2!\$B\$2

Now the file name has been inserted at the front of the references in square brackets. It is really very simple, but there is a little extra detail. When referring to other workbooks, Excel automatically uses absolute references, as you can see, because dollar signs have been inserted. You have to be aware of that if you need to copy the formulas.

Another detail is that the references only look like the example when test.xlsx is open. When test.xlsx is closed, the path is also there.

- 12. In the Ribbon, select the View Tab and click on the Change Window button.
- 13. In the menu that appears, choose the menu item test.xlsx.
- 14. Click on the Office Button and choose close. If asked if you want to save, answer Yes.

Go back to the formula in the new folder. It is now:

='C:\DOKumenter\[test.xlsx]Input'!\$B\$2+'C:\DOKumenter\[test.xlsx]Ark2'!\$B\$2

It is handy that you can link multiple workbooks, but be aware that if you rename or move source files to another folder, the formula that retrieves data from them, should be changed accordingly, otherwise it will not work.

Thus it requires a bit of discipline to work in this way.



9. Macros – Automation

Sometimes you repeat the same actions over and over again in a spreadsheet. You may, for example, have an established procedure for formatting cells. In many cases you can use the automatic formatting of tables, but often you will just highlight some cells using the grid lines and a frame. This means that you must select the cells, add grid lines, insert a frame and maybe a background colour.

After some time, when you have formatted many tables in this way, you may want to look for a way to save some time.

Then "macros" is the answer. A macro is a "tape recording" of a series of actions that you are doing and that you later can play again. A macro can record virtually everything you do. If you should later feel confident enough to start learning Visual Basic programming language, you will even be able to customise the macros, or turn them into small programs that can do a lot of things. We will not get that far in this book, but we will attempt to record and play a macro.

9.1 Recording a Macro

1. Start by creating a spreadsheet like the one in Figure 122.

	E5	•	• (•	<i>f</i> * 9		
	A	В	С	D	E	F
1						
2			Monday	Tuesday	Wensday	
3		Morning	1	2	3	
4		Noon	4	5	6	
5		Evening	7	8	9	
6						

Figure 122: the starting point for our exercise with macros.

- 2. Highlight the entire table i.e. cell range B2: E5.
- 3. In the Ribbon, select the <u>View</u> Tab and click on the <u>Macros</u> button located to the far right in the Ribbon.
- 4. Click on the menu item Record Macro.



Now opens the window "Record Macro", where you have various choices. You can write a descriptive name for the macro, and you can assign a hotkey, so you have quick access to the macro.

You must also decide where to save the macro. If you choose <u>This Workbook</u> it will be available only as long as you are working in the current workbook. If you instead choose <u>Personal Macro Workbook</u>, the macro will always be available. The "Personal Macro Workbook" is a hidden workbook that is always open when you are working in Excel. Therefore, all macros stored in it will always be available.

- 5. Give the macro the name "Format_Table". You cannot use spaces in Macro names, so a "_" sign is used instead.
- 6. Write a "t" as a shortcut. This enables you to activate the macro by holding down the CTRL key on your keyboard and press the T key.
- 7. Choose to save the macro in Personal Macro Workbook.

Record Macro 🛛 🔋 🗙
Macro name:
Formate_Table
Shortcut <u>k</u> ey: Ctrl+ t
Store macro in:
Personal Macro Workbook
Description:
This macro formats a group of cells so they look like a table
OK Cancel

Figure 124: Pre-record settings.

- 8. You can write a short descriptive text about the macro if you want.
- 9. Click <u>OK</u>.

Everything you do after this will be recorded in the macro. It is therefore a good idea to plan what the macro should do BEFORE you start recording.

In this case, I have planned everything in advance. For example, I have already made a cell inside the table the active cell. Otherwise I would have to do it now by selecting, for example, cell E5, which would be recorded in the macro. That would not be a good idea, since the macro then always would start by making cell E5 the active cell. It would make the macro less useful as cell E5 is not always a part of my tables.

- 10. Right-click inside the table and choose Format Cells from the menu that appears.
- 11. In the window that opens, click on the Border Tab.
- 12. Choose the thickest line style and choose a blue colour.
- 13. Then click on Contour.
- 14. Choose one of the thin line styles and choose a green colour.
- 15. Then click on Interior.
- 16. Click <u>OK</u>.

Now you have formatted the table and the recording must be stopped. At the bottom left of the screen (next to the text "Clear") there is a small square. It is a "stop button" which stops the macro recording.

17. Click on the Stop button



Now the macro is has completed recording. There is nothing further to do before we play it.

9.2 Play a Macro

- 18. Select a random cell region. You decide where and how large the region should be.
- 19. Hold the CTRL key down on the keyboard and press the T key.

Now the macro is being played, and the cell region you selected gets green grid lines with a blue border around it.



You can record as many macros as you like. You can view a list of them by clicking the <u>View</u> Tab in the Ribbon, and then click the <u>Macros</u> button. In the menu that appears, click <u>View Macros</u>.



Figure 126: List of your macros.

In the macro window, you can play and delete macros. If you know how to program in Visual Basic, you can also edit your macros. Finally, you can also change the settings to for example assign a different shortcut.

9.3 A Button for Your Macro

Keyboard shortcuts are good, but you can also add a button into the toolbar, "Quick Access", which activates the macro.



- 20. Right-click anywhere on the toolbar "Quick Access". It could for example be the disk icon.
- 21. Click on customize Quick Access Toolbar.
- 22. In the window that opens, choose the item <u>Customize</u> in the right side.
- 23. Under "Choose commands from", click Macros.



Figure 128: Choose commandos from "Macros".

- 24. In the list, you can now select your macro, called "PERSONAL.XLSB! Format Tabel". Click it, then click on the <u>Add>> button</u>
- 25. Click <u>OK</u>.

Now you have an extra button in the Toolbar "Quick Access". You can go ahead and try it.



Figure 129: A button for your macro.

10. Advanced Excel

It is not necessary that you read this section in order to use Excel. If you have a good grasp of the issues already described in the book, you can already use Excel with good results. This section goes a little further and looks at the more advanced types of formulas and functions you can use. In other words, this section will raise your level from skilled user to advanced user.

Excel has a myriad of functions that you can use in your formulas, and sometimes the biggest challenge seems to be able to find your way around to get what you need. I have worked with Excel for many years and I have discovered that, although I have solved many and diverse tasks in Excel, there are some features that I use again and again simply because they are useful in many contexts. It is these features that I will describe in this section. You can then explore the more specialised functions on your own.

10.1 Nested Functions

When you write a formula, you can use functions as arguments inside other functions. You might want to calculate the square root of a sum of a series of cells. It could look like this:

=sqroot(SUM(B2:B20))



124

Here we have a SUM function as argument in a SQ ROOT function. It is not that hard, but if you start working with many nested functions in a formula, you need to keep your tongue straight in the mouth in order to place start and end brackets in the right places.

10.2 Look-up

Look-up functions can find values in a table from reference values. Imagine that you have an index of members in an organisation. The index contains a column with membership numbers and then columns of name, address, member type, etc.

10.2.1 VOOKUP (Vertical Lookup)

VLOOKUP finds values in a table using a search value. If we have a membership directory with membership number, name, address and telephone number, the function may, for example, look up a certain name using the corresponding membership number, which we have entered into a cell. The syntax is:

VLOOKUP lookup_value; table_array; col_index_num;equals)

"lookup_value " is what is sought after. If we want to find a name using a membership number, the lookup value is the membership number

"table_array" is the cell range for the entire table. In our example it is the membership directory..

"col_index_num" is the number of the column a value will be returned from. If the table has four columns and the members' names appear in the second column, we write the number 2 to make the function return the name.

" Equals" is an optional argument. It is a so-called "logical" value, which can be either TRUE or FALSE. This is because the function can search in two different ways. Normally we use the value TRUE, which is also the default position if you omit this argument. The value TRUE results in a search for the largest value that is less than or equal to the lookup value. The value FALSE results in a search for a value which is exactly equal to the lookup value.

· · · ·										
	G4	\bullet f_x	=LOPSLAG(F4;A4:	D13;2;FALSK)						
	А	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Member director	У				Lookup				
2										
3	Member nr	Name	Adress	Telephone		Member nr	Name	Adress	Telephone	
4	1	John Jensen	Sneglestien 3	12345678			4 Anni Anndersen	Algade 10	64208642	
5	2	Peter Poulsen	Vestergade 21	87654321						
6	3	Børge Buhr	Gadekæret 4	24689246						
7	4	Anni Anndersen	Algade 10	64208642						
8	5	Benny Bendtsen	Nørregade 23b	13579135						
9	6	Laila Lundgaard	Vestervænget 1	53197531						
10	7	Birthe Bach	Æblehaven 14	12568998						
11	8	Kasper Knudsen	Kingosgade 88	89986521						
12	9	Niels Nielsen	Fynsgade 9a	90807060						
13	10	Jane Jensen	Århusgade 8	50403020						
14										

Figure 130: VLOOKUP.

In Figure 130 there is an example of the membership index. To the left is the actual table in the cell range A4: D13 with members listed. To the right of the table, there is something which can look up members using the number typed into cell F4.

To be able to look up members' names, the formula in cell G4 is as follows:

=VLOOKUP (F4, A4: D13, 2, FALSE)

To look up address and telephone number the col_index_num should be 3 and 4 respectively.

The logical value "Equals " is set to FALSE, since TRUE may give false results. Imagine that Jane Jensen was member number 11 instead of 10, and that there was no number 10. If "Equals " was set to TRUE, the formula would return "Niels Nielsen," because he is member number 9, which is the highest number that is less than or equal to the lookup value which is 10.

When equals is set to FALSE, only the exact value will be sought after, and in the aforementioned case, the formula would show a mistake, because there were no members with the number 10

When the formula cannot find the lookup value, it shows the error code #I/T.

10.2.2 HLOOKUP (Horizontal Lookup)

HLOOKUP works exactly like VLOOKUP, but instead of searching downwards in the first column, it searches along the first row. Instead of a column number there is also a row number.

10.3 Mathematical and Statistical Functions

This is an overview of the main mathematical and statistical functions.

10.3.1 SUM

Calculates the sum of numbers in one or more cell regions.

10.3.2 AVERAGE

Calculates the average number in one or more cell regions. Empty cells and cells with text are ignored in the calculation.

10.3.3 SQROOT (Square Root)

This Function is self-explanatory. It calculates the square root of a number.

10.3.4 Trigonometric Functions

Excel has the usual trigonometric functions SIN() COS() TAN() and the inverse arcsin(), arccos() and arctan. In addition there are the hyperbolic versions, like SINH(), COSH() and TANH().

Please note that angles are expressed in radians.

10.3.5 PI

PI() makes no arguments, but is just the known constant with 14 decimal places.

10.3.6 ABS (Absolute Value)

Has nothing to do with car brake systems, but returns the absolute value of a number. If the argument is a positive number, only the number is returned. If the argument is a negative number the number is returned as a positive number.

Brain power

Please click the advert

By 2020, wind could provide one-tenth of our planet's electricity needs. Already today, SKF's innovative know-how is crucial to running a large proportion of the world's wind turbines.

Up to 25 % of the generating costs relate to maintenance. These can be reduced dramatically thanks to our systems for on-line condition monitoring and automatic lubrication. We help make it more economical to create cleaner, cheaper energy out of thin air.

By sharing our experience, expertise, and creativity, industries can boost performance beyond expectations. Therefore we need the best employees who can neet this challenge!

The Power of Knowledge Engineering

Plug into The Power of Knowledge Engineering. Visit us at www.skf.com/knowledge

SKF

10.3.7.SHORTEN

SHORTEN (number, number of decimal places) returns a number with the specified number of decimal places. It is almost like rounding off, but SHORTEN ignores rounded off and simply deletes the excess decimals. If the argument "Decimal Places" is left out, the number is shortened to 0 decimal places, that is an integer.

10.3.8 ROUND OFF

Works like SHORTEN and uses the same arguments. But here the figure is rounded off normally. The argument "Decimal places" is not optional in the ROUND OFF function

10.3.9 MIN (Minimum Value)

MIN(value1,value2, ...) or MIN(cellarea1;cell area2; ...) Returns the smallest value of a quantity. The argument is one or more cell areas and/or two or more values.

10.3.10 MAX (Maximum Value)

Is of course the opposite of the MIN function.

10.3.11 SUMIF (Conditional Sum)

Adds numbers in a table together on condition that they, or other values in same row, meet a certain criterion.

In the following example we have a small table with two columns. The first column contains some text, and the second some figures. In the example, we put the figures together that are on the same line as the text "blue":

10.3.12 RAND (Random Numbers)

This function has no arguments but returns a random number between 0 and 1. The value changes over time when making a new calculation in the spreadsheet.

10.3.13 COUNT (Number of Cells with Numbers)

COUNT(cell area) Counts the number of cells in an area that contains numbers. Empty cells and cells with text are not counted. Cells with formulas that return figures are counted.

10.4 Logical functions

Logical functions do not return a number, but a response in the form of TRUE, FALSE or an error code. I often use the logical functions to get a formula to choose between different methods depending on some values.

10.4.1 AND Function

AND(statement1 statement; 2; ...) evaluates one or more statements. If all allegations are true, it returns TRUE. If only one statement is false, it returns FALSE. An example might be:

=AND(2<3;4=4;5>4) returns TRUE, since all statements are accurate. =AND(2<3;4=4;5=4) returns FALSE, since one of the statements is wrong.

In practice we often use cell references or nested functions instead of numbers.

10.4.2 OR Function

Is used in the same way as the AND function, but here returns TRUE if just one claim is correct.

10.4.3 NOT Function

NOT(statement) returns FALSE if the allegation is true and TRUE if the allegation is false. You could also say that it lies about the outcome!

10.4.4 IF Function

IF(statement; TRUE"range"; FALSE"range") evaluate a statement. If the claim is TRUE, it returns that which is in the true part, otherwise it returns what is in the false part.

10.4.5 IF.ERROR Function

IF.ERROR(formula; result if error) shows the result of a formula if it can be calculated. If it cannot be calculated, an alternative outcome is shown. It could, for example, be if you try to divide something by 0, which returns an error.

=IF.ERROR(2*3;10) returns 6, since the formula 2*3 can be calculated. =IF.ERROR(2/0;10) returns 10, since the formula tries to divide 2 by 0, which returns an error value . Instead it shows the alternative result.

10.5 Analyse Data with Analysis Toolpak

Excel has an add-on called "Analysis ToolPak", which can perform a statistical analysis of a quantity of data. Analysis ToolPak is an add-on that is not installed initially, so it must be loaded before you can use it.

10.5.1 Installation of Analysis Toolpak

To install Analysis Toolpak, do the following:

- 1. Click on the Office Button top left on the screen.
- 2. Click on the Excel Option button.
- 3. In the left side of the window that opens, click on Add-Ins.
- 4. Select Analysis Toolpak from the list of add-ins.
- 5. At the bottom of the window, make sure that by "Manage" there is Excel Add-Ins
- 6. Click on the Finish button.
- 7. In the box that opens, ensure there is a "check" mark next to Analysis Toolpak.
- 8. Click on OK.

During this procedure, the program might require the installation of something from the installation disk, which you should just go ahead and do.



10.5.2 A Quick Analysis with Analysis Toolpak

In Figure 131, there are some numbers which we will use for a small analysis



Figure 131: The starting point of the exercise.

- 1. Make a list like the one in Figure 131.
- 2. Click on the <u>Data</u> Tab in the Ribbon.
- 3. Click on the <u>Data Analysis</u> button, which is located furthest to the right in the Ribbon if you have installed Analysis Toolpak.
- 4. A window opens with a list of tools for analysis. Choose Descriptive Statistics and click OK.

Descriptive Statistics		? 🗙
Input		
Input Range:	\$B\$35:\$B\$44 💽	
Grouped By:	⊙ <u>C</u> olumns	Cancel
_	○ <u>R</u> ows	<u>H</u> elp
Labels in First Row		
Output options		
Output Range:		
• New Worksheet <u>Ply</u> :	Result	
🔘 New <u>W</u> orkbook		
Summary statistics		
Confidence Level for Mean:	95 %	
Kth L <u>a</u> rgest:	1	
Kth Smallest:	1	

Figure 132: Settings for Descriptive Statistics.

- 5. A new widow opens, where you must specify a number of settings. Set the settings as shown in Figure 132
- 6. Click <u>OK</u>.

A new Tab is added to the workbook. It is called "Score" and contains the results of the analysis. If you frequently need to perform a statistical analysis on a volume of data, the Analysis ToolPak in many cases can save you a lot of time.

	B3 🗸 💿	<i>f</i> _x 41			
	А	В			
1	Collum 1				
2					
3	Avarage value	41			
4	Standart Error	5,7658			
5	Median	43,5			
6	Condition	23			
7	Standard Submission	18,23306			
8	Sample variance	332,4444			
9	Kurtosis	-0,90814			
10	Varpage	-0,06118			
11	Area	55			
12	Minimum	12			
13	Maximum	67			
14	Sum	410			
15	Number	10			
16	Largest (1)	67			
17	Smallest (1)	12			
18	Confidence level	13,04314			
19					

Figure 133: Result

10.6 Goal Seek

Goal Seek is a function to adjust a cell value, so a calculation will have a desired outcome. Let us illustrate this with an example.

Accountant Sigvardtsen has prepared a budget for the global firm NAILS & SCREWS Inc. (Figure 134). Sigvardtsen proudly presents it to the boss, who frowns and asks: "How many nuts must we sell to avoid a deficit?

	A	В	С	D	E	
34						
35			Amount	á price	Revenue	
36		Sell of screws	750.000	1,25	937.500,00	
37		Sell of Nuts	500.000	1,4	700.000,00	
38		sell of clam	20.000	2,5	125.000	
39		Total revenue			1.762.500,00	
40						
41		Expenditure			Cost	
42		Salary			1.600.000,00	
43		Office			250.000,00	
44		Office expenses			42.000,00	
45		Total expenditure			1.890.000,00	
46						
47		surplus / deficit			-127.500,00	Į
48						

Figure 134: Budget that needs to be balanced.

In his budget, Sigvardtsen projects that he will sell 500,000 nuts at a price of DKK 1.40 each, but the boss is not happy with a deficit of 127,500.00. He needs at a minimum to balance the budget.

In this case, it is easy to figure out how many more nuts you have to sell to get rid of the deficit, but some problems might be harder to calculate. Sigvardtsen happens to be an Excel expert, so he uses Goal Seek to solve those cases.

1. He clicks on the Data Tab in the Ribbon, then on the What If Analysis button.



Figure 135: The "What-if analysis" button.

1	Goal Seek	? 🛛
-	S <u>e</u> t cell:	E47 💽
-	To <u>v</u> alue:	0
-	By changing cell:	\$C\$4 🔣
-	ОК	Cancel

Figure 136: Settings for Goal Seek.

- 2. In the menu that appears, he clicks on Goal Seek.
- 3. He indicates that cell E14 should reach the value 0 by changing cell C4.
- 4. When he clicks <u>OK</u>, Excel reports that a solution has been found, and he clicks <u>OK</u> again.

Turning a challenge into a learning curve. Just another day at the office for a high performer.

Accenture Boot Camp – your toughest test yet

Choose Accenture for a career where the variety of opportunities and challenges allows you to make a difference every day. A place where you can develop your potential and grow professionally, working alongside talented colleagues. The only place where you can learn from our unrivalled experience, while helping our global clients achieve high performance. If this is your idea of a typical working day, then Accenture is the place to be.

It all starts at Boot Camp. It's 48 hours that will stimulate your mind and enhance your career prospects. You'll spend time with other students, top Accenture Consultants and special guests. An inspirational two days

Please click the advert

packed with intellectual challenges and activities designed to let you discover what it really means to be a high performer in business. We can't tell you everything about Boot Camp, but expect a fast-paced, exhilarating and intense learning experience. It could be your toughest test yet, which is exactly what will make it your biggest opportunity.

Find out more and apply online.

Visit accenture.com/bootcamp

Consulting
 Technology
 Outsourcing



	E47	• (0	<i>f</i> _x =E6-E12		
	А	В	С	D	E
34					
35			Amount	á price	Revenue
36		Sell of screws	750.000	1,25	937.500,00
37		Sell of Nuts	500.000	1,4	700.000,00
38		sell of clam	20.000	2,5	125.000
39		Total revenue			1.762.500,00
40					
41		Expenditure			Cost
42		Salary			1.600.000,00
43		Office			250.000,00
44		Office expenses			42.000,00
45		Total expenditure			1.890.000,00
46					
47		surplus / deficit			0,00
48					
_					

Figure 137: The revised budget.

Sigvardtsen can now tell his boss that they need to sell 591,071 nuts to balance the budget.

11. Concluding Remarks

This book has not addressed all aspects of the program because there are so many things you can adapt and adjust, but if you have read all of it, and if you have a reasonable understanding of the various exercises, you are already a highly competent user of Excel.

You will be well equipped to explore the program options. As I also mentioned in the introduction, it is a program that you never learn fully. I myself have worked with it for many years, but I still encounter new challenges and new ways of tackling them. It is just something that is part of working with this program. The more you learn, the more opportunities will open up.

If you are game and want to do more sophisticated things than what is described in this book, I recommend that learn a little of the programming language Visual Basic. Excel comes with an entire programming language, and it gives you the ability to create your own functions that you can use in formulas.

Macros in Excel are actually stored as Visual Basic programming, so that you can edit macros that you have already recorded and give them even more functionality.

I just wish you good luck and lots of fun with Excel!